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About SAntA Cruz County bAnk 

Founded by a group of local business people who share a common commitment to the Santa 

Cruz area, Santa Cruz County Bank first opened its doors on February 3, 2004. Santa Cruz 

County Bank is a locally owned and operated community bank, serving the needs of the residents 

and businesses of Santa Cruz County. We believe strongly in the importance of local decision 

making and responsive customer service. We offer a complete line of depository products and 

lending solutions for businesses and individuals, including business term loans and lines of credit, 

commercial real estate financing, agricultural loans, SBA and USDA government guaranteed loans, 

credit cards, merchant services, remote deposit capture, and online services, including bill payment 

and cash management. Santa Cruz County Bank operates five full service banking offices located 

in Aptos, Capitola, Santa Cruz, Scotts Valley, and Watsonville, and two free standing ATM and 

Night Depositories in Santa Cruz and Aptos. 

Santa Cruz County Bank ranked 4th in overall performance among 


202 California banks in 2014 by Financial Management Consulting 


Group. The Bank ranked 1st (lowest) in non-performing assets.
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TOTAL ASSETS 
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TOTAL DEPOSITS 
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GROSS LOANS 
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NET INTEREST INCOME 
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ShAreholder InformAtIon 

Santa Cruz County Bank’s common stock is listed on the OTCQX as SCZC. Shareholders with 

questions regarding their stockholder account, stock transfer and registration, lost certificates or 

change of address should contact their broker, or if held directly, contact the Bank’s transfer agent 

listed below: 

Computershare Investor Services, P.O. Box 30170, College Station, TX 77842-3170 

800.962.4284, www.computershare.com 

fIve yeAr hIStorICAl PerformAnCe 

All numbers rounded to the nearest $100,000 
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SAntA Cruz County bAnk
  
letter to ShAreholderS
 

To Our Shareholders, 

On behalf of the Board of Directors and Management, 
we are pleased to present our Annual Report and 
highlights for 2014. 

The Bank recorded double-digit percentage 
increases in assets, loans and deposits in 2014. 
Additionally, the Bank achieved record earnings 
for the year ended December 31, 2014, with a 
32% increase in net income. Santa Cruz County 
Bank celebrated its 11th anniversary of operations, 
achieving several new financial milestones and 
outpacing its outstanding 2013 performance. 

Growing our loan portfolio while maintaining credit 
quality continues to be a primary focus for the 
Bank. In 2014 we increased gross loans by $57.5 
million, 22% to $315.6 million with zero past due 
or non-performing loans at year end. For the eighth 
consecutive year, the Bank has been recognized 
as the top SBA 7a and 504 lender in Santa Cruz 
County. Moreover, Santa Cruz County Bank ranked 
6th in Silicon Valley and ranked 37th out of 244 SBA 
lenders statewide for the 2014 fiscal year. 

For the second year in a row, our Bank ranked in 
American Banker Magazine’s “Top Performing 200 
Community Banks and Thrifts in the United States” 
based upon 3-year average return on equity. 
The Bank placed 115th out of 851 institutions in 

the nation. In addition, Santa Cruz County Bank 
ranked 4th in overall performance among 202 
California banks in 2014 by Financial Management 
Consulting Group. The Bank ranked 1st (lowest) in 
nonperforming assets. 

Santa Cruz County Bank was also designated as 
a Super Premier Performing Bank by the Findley 
Reports for the fifth consecutive year. Other 
recognitions and awards are included in the 2014 
highlights section that follows. 

The exemplary level of financial performance Santa 
Cruz County Bank has delivered year after year 
is attributable to the development and effective 
execution of strategic initiatives by our Board of 
Directors and Bank Management team. We are 
grateful to each Board member and to every 
employee of Santa Cruz County Bank for their 
dedication to our mission. 

Your investment in Santa Cruz County Bank stock 
continues to build in value. In 2014, the Bank paid 
four quarterly cash dividends to shareholders. 
Shareholders’ equity increased $5.9 million to 
$38.6 million, an 18% improvement over the prior 
year. In addition, the book value of Santa Cruz 
County Bank’s common stock increased by 10% 
from $16.40 on December 31, 2013 to $18.04 per 
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share at December 31, 2014. Comparing the same 
periods, basic earnings per share increased from 
$1.68 to $2.05, or 22%. 

In December 2014, Santa Cruz County Bank 
stock qualified to trade on the OTCQX, the 
top securities market for U.S. over-the-counter 
equities. Our stock began trading on this market 
on January 9, 2015. To trade on the OTCQX, 
banks must meet high financial standards, be 
current with reporting to their bank regulator, 
regularly publish financial disclosures and appoint 
a corporate broker as their advisor. 

As we enter into our twelfth year of operations, we 
remain committed to sound fiscal management, 
exceptional service delivery, and increasing
shareholder value. Our ongoing investment in 
technology has allowed for the delivery of new 
products such as person to person electronic 
payments, Mobile Banking, and Mobile Capture, 
which give our customers the ability to bank with us 
through a variety of electronic channels. 

Our commitment to community is unwavering. 
We have established Santa Cruz County Bank as 
a community leader in service and volunteerism. 
This is evidenced by our receipt of the Santa Cruz 
County Volunteer Center’s Business Leadership 
“Be the Difference” award in 2013 and winning 
the community’s ongoing “Best Bank” vote in two 
primary local publications. 

As always, we remain grateful for your support of 
Santa Cruz County Bank and helping us achieve our 
mission to be the local community bank of choice. 

 

2014 hIGhlIGhtS 

•	 Total assets surpassed $450 million. 

•	 Total deposits surpassed $400 million. 

•	 Pretax income exceeded $7 million. 

•	 The Bank paid four quarterly $0.05 cash 

dividends to shareholders. 

•	 Santa Cruz County Bank remained as 

top SBA lender in Santa Cruz County, 

ranked 6th in Silicon Valley and 37th  

statewide for the 2014 SBA fiscal year. 

•	 As of June 30, 2014, the Bank ranked 

5th largest in overall market share, 

increasing to 8.42%, of deposits held by 

FDIC insured institutions in Santa Cruz 

County. 

•	 The Bank was designated a “Super 

Premier” Performing Bank by Findley 

Reports for its 2014 performance. 

•	 The Bank received 4-Star “Excellent” 

ratings by Bauer Financial Inc. for its 

quarterly financial performance in 2014. 

•	 Santa Cruz County Bank was voted 

“Best Bank” in Santa Cruz County in 

the Good Times readers poll for a third 

consecutive year: 2013, 2014, 2015. 
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George Gallucci 

Chairman 

of the Board 

David Heald  

President &  

Chief Executive Officer 

  

 



our CuStomerS SAy It beSt  

“We choose Santa Cruz County Bank b
we know they share our values of p
community first. Not only do they 
banking easy, we see them out voluntee
engaging their customers and investin
our community every day.” 

Karen Delaney & Lois Connell, 
Volunteer Center of Santa Cruz County 
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Aaron 
Four Wi

Our 4th generation wholesale nursery 
usiness secured financing through 

anta Cruz County Bank to purchase our 
operty, along with a line of credit to help 
h seasonal cash flow. It was a breath of 
h air to find a bank that listened to our 
s and delivered. Thank you for making our 
ng so effortless! 

Dillon, Lexa Dillon & Don Dillon, Jr.,  
nds Growers 

“Pacific Cookie Company has banked wi
Cruz County Bank since the Bank’s inc
As our company grows, the Bank contin
be a valuable mentor and team membe
appreciate that the Bank understands
financial needs and that they are depend
timely and committed to our ‘sweet’ succe

Cara Pearson, 
Pacific Cookie Company 
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r. We 
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able, 
ss.”  
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SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BANK  
NOTeS TO FiNANCiAl STATemeNTS  

  

 

 
 

 

Crowe  Horwath LLP  
Independent Member  Crowe Horwath International  

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Shareholders and Board of Directors 
Santa Cruz County Bank 
Santa  Cruz, California  
 
Report on the Financial Statements  
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Santa  Cruz  County Bank (the "Bank"), which 
comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related statements of income, 
comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and 
the related notes to the financial statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements  
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States  of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free fr om material misstatement, whether due to fraud or  
error.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility  
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our  audits in accordance  with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require  that we plan and  perform the  audit to obtain reasonable  assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures  to obtain audit evidence  about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material  misstatement of  the financial  statements,  whether due  to fraud  or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to  the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the  financial statements in order to design  audit procedures  that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose  of expressing  an opinion on the  effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating  
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained  is sufficient  and appropriate to provide a  basis  for 
our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the  
financial position of Santa  Cruz County  Bank as  of December 31, 2014  and 2013, and the results of its 
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance  with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
 
 
 
 
 Crowe Horwath LLP 
 
San Francisco, California  
March 17, 2015  

 



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BANK  
bAlAnCe SheetS 

december 31, 2014 and 2013 

ASSETS 
Cash and due from financial institutions $ 9,504,355 $ 10,780,052 
Federal funds sold 615 1,350,967
   Cash and cash equivalents 9,504,970 12,131,019 

Interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions 67,592,000 66,715,534 
Securities available for sale 11,159,506 -
Securities held to maturity (Fair Value 2014-$47,656,457; 2013-$53,387,617) 46,380,219 53,266,005 
Loans held for sale 32,937,632 23,716,079 

 Loans receivable, net of allowance of $6,402,752 in 2014; $5,705,862 in 2013 277,571,975 229,267,807 
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost 1,420,900 1,184,300 
Pacific Coast Bankers Bank stock, at cost 170,000 170,000 
Loan Servicing Rights 720,690 588,903 
Real estate owned, net - 358,584 
Premises and equipment, net 767,009 839,016 
Bank owned life insurance 5,557,518 5,380,629 
Deferred income tax 3,469,226 3,236,257 
Accrued interest receivable 1,410,876 1,312,772 
Other assets 
     TOTAL ASSETS 

1,132,361 411,179
$ 459,794,882 $ 398,578,084 

2014 2013 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Deposits
   Non-interest bearing $ 191,789,387 $ 166,021,518 
   Interest bearing 
   Total deposits 

222,196,946 194,218,230
413,986,333 360,239,748 

Accrued interest payable 72,839 89,049 
Other liabilities 7,106,310 5,472,983
   Total liabilities 

Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 16) 

421,165,482 365,801,780 

Shareholders' equity 
Preferred stock, no par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized;
   no shares issued or outstanding 
Common stock, no par value; 30,000,000 shares authorized;
   2,141,253 shares issued at December 31, 2014 and 1,999,090
   shares issued at December 31, 2013 23,346,191 21,904,069 
Additional paid-in capital 1,281,755 959,232 
Retained earnings 14,368,514 10,423,089 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 
   Total shareholders' equity 

     TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

(367,060) (510,086)
38,629,400 32,776,304

$ 459,794,882 $ 398,578,084 

See accompanying notes 
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SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BANK  
StAtementS of InCome 
years ended december 31, 

2014 2013 
Interest and dividend income 
Loans, including fees $ 15,589,081 $ 13,385,589 
Interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions 685,778 728,073 
Taxable securities 995,830 603,266 
Tax exempt securities 384,981 372,538 
Federal funds sold 14,918 17,290
     Total interest and dividend income 17,670,588 15,106,756 

Interest expense 
Deposits 413,980 413,493 
Federal Home Loan Bank advances and federal funds purchased 
     Total interest expense 

Net interest income 

2,316 273
416,296 413,766 

17,254,292 14,692,990 
Provision for loan losses 750,000 487,500
     Net interest income after provision for loan losses 16,504,292 14,205,490 

Noninterest income 
Service charges on deposits 623,203 700,445 
Net gains on sales of loans 1,266,528 1,097,391 
Loan servicing fees 507,478 396,135 
Net gains on sales of securities (2013 includes $31,781
     accumulated other comprehensive income reclassifications
     for unrealized net gains on available for sale securities) - 31,781 
Other 914,237 1,104,198
     Total noninterest income 3,311,446 3,329,950 

Noninterest expense 
Salaries and employee benefits 6,965,407 6,442,206 
Occupancy 1,012,044 990,585 
Furniture and equipment 410,333 415,289 
Marketing and business development 333,054 292,353 
Data and item processing 588,944 921,797 
Professional services 848,474 1,048,131 
Federal deposit insurance 277,051 275,659 
Provision for off balance sheet commitments - 16,852 
Other 2,225,757 2,084,059
     Total noninterest expense 

Income before income taxes 

12,661,064 12,486,931 

7,154,674 5,048,509 
Income tax expense 
Net income 

2,783,487 1,736,512 
$ 4,371,187 $ 3,311,997 

Earnings per share:
     Basic 
     Diluted 

$ 2.05 $ 1.68 
$ 2.02 $ 1.62 

See accompanying notes 
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SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BANK  
bAlAnCe SheetS 

december 31, 2014 and 2013 
StAtementS of ComPrehenSIve InCome 

years ended december 31, 31, 

2014 2013 

Net income 

Other comprehensive (loss) income: 

Unrealized gains on securities:
   Unrealized holding (loss) gain arising during the period
   Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income
   Tax effect 
   Net of tax

Defined benefit pension plans:
   Net gain (loss) arising during the period 
   Reclassification adjustment for amortization of prior service
     cost and net gain/loss included in net periodic pension cost
   Tax effect
   Net of tax

Total other comprehensive (loss) income

Comprehensive income 

$ 4,371,187 

               12,092 
-

(14,218) 
               (2,126)

             238,188 

                 8,480 
           (101,516)
             145,152 

             143,026 

$ 4,514,213 

$ 

$ 

3,311,997 

         (1,182,133)
              (31,781)

492,319
            (721,595) 

             349,193 

                 8,480 
            (147,198)
             210,475 

            (511,120) 

2,800,877 

See accompanying notes 
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SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BANK  
StAtementS of InCome 
years ended december 31, 

 
 

Accumulated 
Additional Other 

Common Paid-In Retained Comprehensive 
Shares Stock Capital Earnings (Loss) Total 

Balance at January 1, 2013 1,966,940 $ 21,573,659 $ 868,559 $ 7,406,722 $ 1,034 $ 29,849,974 

Net income       3,311,997       3,311,997 

Other comprehensive loss             (511,120)         (511,120) 

Exercise of stock options, 
including tax benefit         32,150           330,410              (873) 329,537 

Restricted stock awards and 
related expense          27,863            27,863 

Share-based compensation          63,683            63,683 

Cash dividends declared ($0.05 per share)         (295,630)         (295,630) 

Balance at December 31, 2013 1,999,090 $ 21,904,069 $ 959,232 $ 10,423,089 $ (510,086) $ 32,776,304 

Net income       4,371,187       4,371,187 

Other comprehensive Income              143,026          143,026 

Exercise of stock options, 
including tax benefit       142,163        1,442,122        167,731       1,609,853 

Restricted stock awards and 
related expense          27,859            27,859 

Share-based compensation        126,933          126,933 

Cash dividends declared ($0.05 per share)         (425,762)         (425,762) 

Balance at December 31, 2014 2,141,253 $ 23,346,191 $ 1,281,755 $ 14,368,514 $ (367,060) $ 38,629,400 

See accompanying notes 
10 



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BANK  
 StAtementS of CASh floWS 

years ended december 31, 

Cash flows from operating activities 2014 2013 
Net income $ 4,371,187 $ 3,311,997 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities: 

Provision for loan losses 750,000 487,500 
Depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment 339,510 389,132 
Net amortization of securities 913,670 1,034,514 
Net loan amortization and accretion (374,536) (42,866)

   Deferred income tax benefit (333,013) (315,552) 
Net realized gain on sales of securities - (31,781) 
Net gain on sale of loans (1,266,528) (1,097,391) 
Stock based compensation expense 154,792 91,546 
Earnings on bank owned life insurance (176,889) (173,364) 
Originations of loans held for sale (27,630,208) (16,609,050) 
Proceeds from loans held for sale 17,898,211 13,826,026 
Net loss on sale/disposal of assets 7,228 1,953 
Provision for unfunded loan commitments - 16,852 
Gain on sale of OREO (55,020) (57,072) 
Writedowns on OREO 200,000 -
Deferred benefit expense 290,215 259,478 
Decrease in deferred loan fees, net of costs (729,596) (361,880) 
Net change in accrued interest receivable (98,104) (122,006) 
(Increase) Decrease in other assets (477,413) 514,658 
Net change in accrued interest payable and other liabilities (16,210) (567) 
Increase in other liabilities 1,588,843 732,034 

Net cash from operating activities (4,643,861) 1,854,161 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Redemption of certificates of deposit in other financial institutions 55,087,000 38,369,645 
Purchase of certificates of deposit in other financial institutions (55,963,000) (37,408,182) 
Available-for-sale securities:
   Sales - 607,187
   Maturities, prepayments and calls - 1,754,000
   Purchases (11,374,202) (13,729,616)
   Principal repayments on securities available for sale 227,127 5,676,576 
Held-to-maturity securities:
   Maturities, prepayments and calls 1,636,000 1,395,016
   Purchases (1,047,332) (15,210,888)
   Principal repayments on securities held to maturity 5,404,967 3,325,176 
Loan originations and payments, net (46,571,204) (28,734,568) 
Purchases of premises and equipment (274,731) (65,747) 
Purchases of Federal Home Loan Bank stock (236,600) (107,800) 
Net proceeds from sales of OREO 199,111 3,354,678 

Net cash from investing activities (52,912,864) (40,774,523) 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Net change in deposits 53,746,585 38,649,254 
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances and other debt 419,900,000 20,300,000 
Repayments on Federal Home Loan Bank advances and other debt (419,900,000) (20,300,000) 
Cash dividends paid (425,762) (295,630) 
Proceeds from exercise of stock options, including tax benefit 1,609,853 329,537 

Net cash from financing activities 54,930,676 38,683,161 
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (2,626,049) (237,201) 
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 12,131,019 12,368,220 
Ending cash and cash equivalents $ 9,504,970 $ 12,131,019 

Supplemental cash flow information 
Interest paid $ 432,506 $ 414,333 
Income taxes paid 3,120,000 1,910,000 

Supplemental noncash disclosures 
Transfer from loans to real estate owned - 216,327 
Loans provided for sales of real estate owned - 1,300,000 
Transfer of securities from available for sale to held to maturity - 43,096,182 

See accompanying notes 
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SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BANK  
NOTeS TO FiNANCiAl STATemeNTS

 

 

 

 

 

 

note 1: SummAry of SIGnIfICAnt ACCountInG PolICIeS 

Nature of Operations 
Santa Cruz County Bank, referred to as “the Bank”, is a 
California state chartered bank which offers a full range of 
commercial and personal banking services to residents 
and businesses in Santa Cruz County, California, 
through its five full service offices located in Aptos, 
Capitola, Santa Cruz, Scotts Valley, and Watsonville. 
The Bank was incorporated on September 10, 2003 
as Santa Cruz County Bank (In Organization) and 
commenced banking operations on February 3, 2004 
(inception), upon receipt of final regulatory approval. The 
Bank is subject to regulations and undergoes periodic 
examinations by the California Department of Business 
Oversight (“CDBO”) and the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (“FDIC”). The Bank’s deposits are insured 
by the FDIC up to applicable limits. 

The majority of the Bank’s business is conducted 
with customers located in Santa Cruz County and 
adjacent counties. Its primary deposit products are 
checking, savings, and term certificate accounts, and 
its primary lending products are commercial, multi-
family, agriculture, loans supported by single-family 
residential real estate, municipal loans, and installment 
loans. Portions of said loans are secured by specific 
items of collateral including business assets, consumer 
assets, and commercial and residential real estate. Bank 
products are also supported by various government 
guarantee programs. Commercial loans are expected to 
be repaid from cash flow from operations of businesses. 
There are no significant concentrations of loans to any 
one industry or customer. However, the customers’ 
ability to repay their loans is dependent on the real 
estate and general economic conditions in the area. 

SubSequeNt eveNtS: The Bank has reviewed all 
events occurring from December 31, 2014 through 
March 17, 2015, the date the financial statements 
were available to be issued and no subsequent events 
occurred requiring accrual or disclosure. 

uSe Of eStimateS: The preparation of financial 
statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions based on available 

information that affect the reported amounts in the 
financial statements and the disclosures provided, and 
actual results could differ. 

CaSh flOwS: For purposes of reporting cash flows, 
cash and cash equivalents include cash, deposits in 
other financial institutions with maturities fewer than 90 
days, and federal funds sold. Federal funds are sold for 
a one day period and are highly liquid investments. Net 
cash flows are reported for customer loan and deposit 
transactions, interest-bearing deposits in other financial 
institutions, and federal funds purchased. 

iNtereSt-beariNg DepOSitS iN Other 
fiNaNCial iNStitutiONS: Interest-bearing deposits 
in other financial institutions mature within five years and 
are carried at cost. 

iNveStmeNt SeCuritieS: Debt securities are 
classified as held to maturity and carried at amortized 
cost when management has the positive intent and 
ability to hold them to maturity. Debt securities are 
classified as available for sale when they might be 
sold before maturity. Equity securities with readily 
determinable fair values are classified as available for 
sale. Available for sale securities are recorded at fair 
value with unrealized holding gains and losses reported 
in other comprehensive income, net of tax. At the time of 
purchase, the Bank designates securities as either held 
to maturity or available for sale based on its investment 
objectives, operational needs, and intent. 

The Bank transferred its entire available for sale portfolio 
into the held to maturity category during the third 
quarter of 2013. Amortization of the unrealized holding 
gain (loss) on the securities at the date of transfer is 
being amortized over the remaining life of the security 
as an adjustment of yield. The unamortized balance 
of the unrealized holding gain (loss) that existed at 
the date of transfer continues to be reported in the 
accumulated other comprehensive income account, 
but is amortized over the remaining life of the security as 
an adjustment of yield in a manner consistent with the 
amortization of any premium or discount, as per ASC 



13 

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BANK  
NOTeS TO FiNANCiAl STATemeNTS

  

Topic 320, Investments - Debt and Equity Securities. 
The Bank has categorized new purchases during 2014 
as available for sale. 

Interest income includes amortization of purchase 
premium or discount. Premiums and discounts on 
securities are amortized on the level-yield method without 
anticipating prepayments, except for mortgage backed 
securities where prepayments are anticipated. Gains 
and losses on sales are recorded on the settlement date 
and determined using the specific identification method. 

An investment security is impaired when its carrying 
value is greater than its fair value. Investment securities 
are evaluated for other-than-temporary impairment 
(“OTTI”) on at least a quarterly basis and more frequently 
when economic or market conditions warrant such an 
evaluation. For securities in an unrealized loss position, 
management considers the magnitude and duration 
of the decline and the intent and ability of the Bank 
to retain its investment in the securities for a period 
of time sufficient to allow for an anticipated recovery 
in fair value, in addition to the reasons underlying the 
decline, to determine whether the loss in value is other 
than temporary. The term “other than temporary” is not 
intended to indicate that the decline is permanent, but 
indicates that the prospects for a near-term recovery of 
value is not necessarily favorable, or that there is a lack of 
evidence to support a realizable value equal to or greater 
than the carrying value of the investment. If either of the 
criteria regarding intent or requirement to sell is met, the 
entire difference between amortized cost and fair value 
is recognized as impairment through earnings. For debt 
securities that do not meet the aforementioned criteria, 
the amount of impairment is split into two components 
as follows: 1) OTTI related to credit loss, which must be 
recognized in the income statement and 2) other-than-
temporary impairment (OTTI) related to other factors, 
which is recognized in other comprehensive income. 
The credit loss is defined as the difference between the 
present value of the cash flows expected to be collected 
and the amortized cost basis. For equity securities, the 
entire amount of impairment is recognized through 
earnings. 

lOaNS helD fOr Sale: Loans originated and 
intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at 

the lower of aggregate cost or fair value. Net unrealized 
losses, if any, are recorded as a valuation allowance and 
charged to earnings. 

Loans held for sale are generally sold with servicing rights 
retained. The carrying value of loans sold is reduced by 
the amount allocated to the servicing right. If the loans 
are sold with servicing retained, the fair value of the 
servicing asset or liability is recorded on the balance 
sheet. Gains and losses on the sold portion of the loan 
is recognized at the time of sale based on the difference 
between the sale proceeds and the carrying value of the 
related loans sold. 

lOaNS: Loans that management has the intent and 
ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity 
or payoff are reported at the amount of unpaid principal 
balances outstanding, net of deferred loan fees and 
costs, and an allowance for loan losses. Interest income 
is accrued on the unpaid principal balance daily and 
credited to income as it is earned. When a loan pays 
off or is sold, any unamortized balance of any related 
premiums, discounts, loan origination fees, and direct 
loan origination costs is recognized in income. Loan 
origination fees, net of certain direct origination costs, 
are deferred and recognized in interest income over 
the expected life of the loan using a method that 
approximates the level yield method without anticipating 
prepayments. 

Accrual of interest is generally discontinued on loans 
which are more than 90 days delinquent or when 
management believes, after considering economic 
and business conditions and collection efforts, that the 
borrower’s financial condition is such that collection of 
interest is doubtful unless the loan is well-secured and 
in the process of collection. Past due status is based 
on the contractual terms of the loan. A loan is moved 
to non-accrual status in accordance with the Bank’s 
policy, typically after 90 days of non-payment. In all 
cases, loans are placed on non-accrual or charged-off 
at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is 
considered doubtful. Non-accrual loans and loans past 
due 90 days still on accrual include both smaller balance 
homogeneous loans that are collectively evaluated for 
impairment and individually classified impaired loans. 
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When a loan is placed on non-accrual status, all interest 
previously accrued but not collected is reversed against 
current period interest income. Interest received on such 
loans is accounted for on the cash-basis method and 
recognized only to the extent that cash is received and 
where the future collection of principal is probable, until 
qualifying for return to accrual. Generally, loans will be 
restored to an accrual status when all the principal and 
interest amounts contractually due are brought current 
and future payments are reasonably assured. 

CONCeNtratiON Of CreDit riSk: Most of the 
Bank’s business activity is with customers located within 
Santa Cruz County. Therefore, the Bank’s exposure to 
credit risk is significantly affected by changes in the 
economy in the Santa Cruz County area. 

allowance for loan losses – The allowance for 
loan losses is an estimate of probable credit losses in 
the Bank’s loan portfolio that have been incurred as of 
the balance sheet date. The allowance is established 
through a provision for loan losses which is charged 
to expense. Additions to the allowance are expected 
to maintain the adequacy of the total allowance after 
credit losses and loan growth. Loan losses are charged 
against the allowance when management believes the 
uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Cash 
received on previously charged-off amounts is recorded 
as a recovery to the allowance. Management estimates 
the allowance balance required using past loan loss 
experience, the nature and volume of the portfolio, 
information about specific borrower situations and 
estimated collateral values, economic conditions, and 
other factors. Allocations of the allowance may be made 
for specific loans, but the entire allowance is available 
for any loan that, in management’s judgment, should be 
charged-off. 

The allowance consists of specific and general 
components. The specific component relates to loans 
that are individually classified as impaired when, based 
on current information and events, it is probable that the 
Bank will be unable to collect all amounts due according 
to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Generally, 
the Bank identifies loans to be reported as impaired when 
such loans are in non-accrual status or classified in part 
or in whole as either doubtful or loss. Loans for which 

the terms have been modified resulting in a concession, 
and for which the borrower is experiencing financial 
difficulties, are considered troubled debt restructurings 
(TDRs) and classified as impaired. 

Factors considered by management in determining 
impairment include payment status, collateral value, 
and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and 
interest payments when due. Loans that experience 
insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls 
generally are not classified as impaired. Management 
determines the significance of payment delays and 
payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into 
consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the 
loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, 
the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment 
record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the 
principal and interest owed. 

Commercial and commercial real estate loans over 
$100,000 are individually evaluated for impairment. 
Typically, loans below $100,000 from all class types 
are excluded from individual impairment analysis. 
When a loan is impaired, a portion of the allowance is 
allocated so that the loan is reported, net, at the present 
value of expected future cash flows discounted at the 
loan’s effective interest rate, except that as a practical 
expedient, it may measure impairment based on a loan’s 
observable market price, or the fair value of the collateral 
if the loan is collateral dependent. A loan is collateral 
dependent if the repayment of the loan is expected to 
be provided solely by the underlying collateral. Large 
groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans, such as 
consumer and residential real estate loans are collectively 
evaluated for impairment, and accordingly, they are not 
separately identified for impairment disclosures. 

A restructuring of a debt constitutes a troubled debt 
restructuring (TDR) if the Bank, for economic or legal 
reasons related to the debtor’s financial difficulties, 
grants a concession to the debtor that it would not 
otherwise consider. Restructured workout loans 
typically present an elevated level of credit risk as the 
borrowers are not able to perform according to the 
original contractual terms. Troubled debt restructurings 
are individually evaluated for impairment and included in 
the separately identified impairment disclosures. TDRs 
are measured at the present value of estimated future 
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cash flows using the loan’s effective rate at inception. If 
a TDR is considered to be a collateral dependent loan, 
the loan is reported, net, at the fair value of the collateral 
less estimated costs to sell. For TDRs that subsequently 
default, the Bank determines the amount of the allowance 
on that loan in accordance with the accounting policy 
for the allowance for loan losses on loans individually 
identified as impaired. The Bank incorporates recent 
historical experience related to TDRs including the 
performance of TDRs that subsequently default into the 
calculation of the allowance by loan portfolio segment. 

The determination of the general reserve for loans that 
are not impaired is collectively evaluated and based on 
estimates made by management, to include, but not 
limited to, consideration of historical losses by portfolio 
segment, internal asset classifications, and qualitative 
factors to include economic trends in the Bank’s service 
areas, industry experience and trends, geographic 
concentrations, estimated collateral values, the Bank’s 
underwriting policies, the character of the loan portfolio, 
and probable losses inherent in the portfolio taken as 
a whole. The historical loss experience is determined 
by portfolio segment and is based on considerations of 
both the Bank’s actual historical loss history and losses 
of the peer group in which the Bank operates over the 
most recent 5 years. 

The Bank maintains a separate allowance for each 
portfolio segment (loan type). These portfolio segments 
include commercial real estate, land and construction, 
commercial and industrial, agricultural land, real estate 
and production, and consumer loans (principally home 
equity loans). Portfolio classes are not distinguished from 
segments for reporting purposes. The allowance for 
loan losses attributable to each portfolio segment, which 
includes both impaired loans and loans that are not 
impaired, is combined to determine the Bank’s overall 
allowance, hence, is included on the balance sheet. 

The general reserve component of the allowance for loan 
losses also consists of reserve factors that are based on 
management’s assessment of the following for each 
portfolio segment: (1) inherent credit risk, (2) historical 
losses, and (3) other qualitative factors. These reserve 
factors are inherently subjective and are driven by the 
repayment risk associated with each portfolio segment 
described below. 

Commercial real estate – Commercial real 
estate mortgage loans generally possess a higher 
inherent risk of loss than other real estate portfolio 
segments, except land and construction loans. 
Adverse economic developments or an overbuilt 
market impact commercial real estate projects 
and may result in troubled loans. Trends in 
vacancy rates of commercial properties impact 
the credit quality of these loans. High vacancy 
rates reduce operating revenues and the ability 
for properties to produce sufficient cash flow to 
service debt obligations. 

land and construction – Land and construction 
loans generally possess a higher inherent risk of 
loss than other real estate portfolio segments. A 
major risk arises from the necessity to complete 
projects within specified cost and time lines. 
Trends in the construction industry significantly 
impact the credit quality of these loans, as 
demand drives construction activity. In addition, 
trends in real estate values significantly impact 
the credit quality of these loans, as property 
values determine the economic viability of 
construction projects. 

Commercial and industrial – Commercial and 
industrial loans generally possess a lower inherent 
risk of loss than real estate portfolio segments 
because these loans are generally underwritten 
to existing cash flows of operating businesses. 
Debt coverage is provided by business cash 
flows and economic trends influenced by 
unemployment rates and other key economic 
indicators are closely correlated to the credit 
quality of these loans. 

agricultural land, real estate and production – 
Agricultural real estate mortgage loans generally 
possess a lower inherent risk of loss than other 
real estate portfolio segments, including land 
and construction loans. Adverse economic 
developments may result in troubled loans. Loans 
secured by crop production and livestock are 
especially vulnerable to two risk factors that are 
largely outside the control of Bank and borrowers: 
commodity prices and weather conditions. 
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Consumer – Comprised of single family residential 
real estate, home equity lines of credit, personal 
lines and installment loans. The degree of risk in 
residential real estate lending depends primarily on 
the loan amount in relation to collateral value, the 
interest rate and the borrower’s ability to repay in 
an orderly fashion. These loans generally possess 
a lower inherent risk of loss than other real estate 
portfolio segments. An installment loan portfolio 
is usually comprised of a large number of small 
loans scheduled to be amortized over a specific 
period. Most installment loans are made directly for 
consumer purchases, but business loans granted 
for the purchase of heavy equipment or industrial 
vehicles may also be included. Economic trends 
determined by unemployment rates and other 
key economic indicators are closely correlated to 
the credit quality of these loans. Weak economic 
trends indicate that the borrowers’ capacity to 
repay their obligations may be deteriorating. 

Although management believes the allowance to be 
adequate, ultimate losses may vary from its estimates. 
At least quarterly, the Board of Directors reviews the 
adequacy of the allowance, including consideration 
of the relative risks in the portfolio, current economic 
conditions and other factors. If the Board of Directors 
and management determine that changes are warranted 
based on those reviews, the allowance is adjusted. 
In addition, the Bank’s primary regulators, FDIC and 
CDBO, as an integral part of their examination process, 
review the adequacy of the allowance. These regulatory 
agencies may require additions to the allowance based 
on their judgment about information available at the time 
of their examinations. 

ServiCiNg rightS: When loans are sold with 
servicing retained, servicing rights are initially recorded 
at fair value with the income statement effect recorded 
in gains on sales of loans. Fair value is based on 
market prices for comparable mortgage servicing 
contracts, when available or alternatively, is based on 
a valuation model that calculates the present value of 
estimated future net servicing income. All classes of 
servicing assets are subsequently measured using the 
amortization method which requires servicing rights to 
be amortized into noninterest income in proportion to, 

and over the period of, the estimated future net servicing 
income of the underlying loans. 

Servicing rights are evaluated for impairment based 
upon the fair value of the rights as compared to carrying 
amount. Impairment is determined by stratifying 
rights into groupings based on predominant risk 
characteristics, such as interest rate, loan type and 
investor type. Impairment is recognized through a 
valuation allowance for an individual grouping, to the 
extent that fair value is less than the carrying amount. 
If the Bank later determines that all or a portion of the 
impairment no longer exists for a particular grouping, 
a reduction of the allowance may be recorded as an 
increase to income. Changes in valuation allowances 
are reported with loan servicing fees income on the 
income statement. The fair values of servicing rights are 
subject to significant fluctuations as a result of changes 
in estimated and actual prepayment speeds and default 
rates and losses. 

Servicing fee income, which is reported on the income 
statement as loan servicing fees, is recorded for fees 
earned on servicing loans. The fees are based on a 
fixed amount per loan and recorded as income when 
earned. The amortization of servicing rights is netted 
against loan servicing fee income. Servicing fees totaled 
$507,478 and $396,135 for the years ended December 
31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Late fees and ancillary 
fees related to loan servicing are not material. 

real eState OwNeD: Assets acquired through 
or instead of foreclosure are initially recorded at fair 
value of the property, less estimated selling expenses, 
establishing a new cost basis. Any write-down to fair 
value at the time of transfer to foreclosed real estate is 
charged to the allowance for loan losses. These assets 
are subsequently accounted for at lower of cost or fair 
value less estimated costs to sell. If fair value declines 
subsequent to foreclosure, a valuation allowance is 
recorded through expense. Operating costs incurred 
after acquisition and in conjunction with the maintenance 
of real estate acquired through foreclosure are charged 
to expense as incurred. 

premiSeS aND equipmeNt: Premises and 
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and amortization. Leasehold improvements 
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are amortized over the shorter of the estimated useful 
life or the initial term of the respective leases. Certain 
operating leases contain incentives in the form of tenant 
improvement allowances or credits. Lease incentives are 
capitalized at the inception of the lease and amortized 
on a straight-line basis over the original lease term 
with useful lives ranging from 3 to 10 years. Furniture, 
fixtures and equipment are depreciated using the 
straight-line method with useful lives ranging from 5 to 
7 years. All other maintenance and repair expenditures 
are expensed as incurred. 

feDeral hOme lOaN baNk StOCk: The Bank, 
as a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) 
system, is required to maintain an investment in the 
capital stock of the FHLB of San Francisco based on 
the level of borrowings and other factors, and may 
invest in additional amounts. FHLB stock is carried at 
cost, classified as restricted security, and periodically 
evaluated for impairment based on ultimate recovery 
of par value. The FHLB stock is redeemable at its par 
value of $100 per share at the discretion of the FHLB of 
San Francisco. The FHLB can suspend dividends and 
redemptions upon notification to its members. Both cash 
and stock dividends, if any, are reported as income. 

paCifiC COaSt baNkerS baNk StOCk: Pacific 
Coast Bankers Bank stock is carried at cost, classified 
as restricted security, and periodically evaluated for 
impairment based on ultimate recovery of par value. 
Both cash and stock dividends, if any, are reported 
as income. 

baNk OwNeD life iNSuraNCe: The Bank 
has purchased life insurance policies on certain key 
executives. Bank owned life insurance is recorded at 
the amount that can be realized under the insurance 
contract at the balance sheet date, which is the cash 
surrender value adjusted for other charges or other 
amounts due that are probable at settlement. 

lOaN COmmitmeNtS aND relateD fiNaNCial 

iNStrumeNtS: Financial instruments include off-
balance sheet credit instruments, such as commitments 
to make loans and commercial letters of credit, issued 
to meet customer financing needs. The face amount 
for these items represents the exposure to loss, 

before considering customer collateral or ability to 
repay. Such financial instruments are recorded when 
they are funded. 

StOCk-baSeD COmpeNSatiON: Compensation 
cost is recognized for stock options and restricted stock 
awards issued to employees and directors, based on the 
fair value of these awards at the date of grant. The Bank 
estimates the fair value of each stock option award as of 
the date of grant using a Black-Scholes-Merton model, 
while the market price of the Bank’s common stock at 
the date of grant is used for restricted stock awards. 
Compensation cost is recognized over the required 
service period, generally defined as the vesting period. 

iNCOme taxeS: Income tax expense is the total of 
the current year income tax due or refundable and the 
change in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Deferred 
income taxes are computed using the asset and 
liability method, which recognizes a liability or asset 
representing the tax effects, based on current tax law, 
of future deductible or taxable amounts attributable 
to events that have been recognized in the financial 
statements. A valuation allowance is established to 
reduce the deferred tax asset to the level at which it 
is “more likely than not” that the tax asset or benefits 
will be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
calculated by applying current enacted tax rates against 
future deductible or taxable amounts. Realization of 
tax benefits of deductible temporary differences and 
operating loss carry forwards depends on having 
sufficient taxable income of an appropriate character 
within the carry forward periods. 

The Bank uses a comprehensive model for recognizing, 
measuring, presenting and disclosing in the financial 
statements tax positions taken or expected to be taken 
on a tax return. A tax position is recognized as a benefit 
only if it is “more likely than not” that the tax position 
would be sustained in a tax examination, with a tax 
examination being presumed to occur. The amount 
recognized is the largest amount of tax benefit that is 
greater than 50% likely of being realized on examination. 
For tax positions not meeting the “more likely than not” 
test, no tax benefit is recorded. 
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The Bank recognizes interest and/or penalties related to 
income tax matters in income tax expense. 

retiremeNt plaNS: Pension expense is the net 
of service and interest cost, return on plan assets 
and amortization of gains and losses not immediately 
recognized. Employee 401(k) plan expense is the amount 
of matching contributions. Deferred compensation and 
supplemental retirement plan expense allocates the 
benefits over years of service. 

earNiNgS per COmmON Share: Basic earnings 
per common share are calculated by dividing net 
income by the weighted-average number of common 
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings 
per common share takes into account the potential 
dilutive impact of such instruments and uses the 
average share price for the period in determining the 
number of incremental shares to add to the weighted-
average number of shares outstanding. There is no 
adjustment to the number of outstanding shares for 
potential dilutive instruments, such as stock options, 
when a loss occurs because the conversion of potential 
common stock is anti-dilutive or when stock options are 
not in-the-money. 

COmpreheNSive iNCOme: Comprehensive income 
consists of net income and other comprehensive (loss) 
income. Other comprehensive income includes the 
adjustment to fully recognize the liability associated 
with the supplemental executive retirement plan and 
unrealized gains and losses on securities available 
for sale, which are also recognized as separate 
components of equity. 

lOSS CONtiNgeNCieS: Loss contingencies, 
including claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary 
course of business, are recorded as liabilities when the 
likelihood of loss is probable and an amount or range of 
loss can be reasonably estimated. 

DiviDeND reStriCtiON: Banking regulations 
require maintaining certain capital levels and may limit 
the dividends paid by the Bank to shareholders. 

fair value Of fiNaNCial iNStrumeNtS: 
The Bank’s estimated fair value amounts have been 

determined by the Bank using relevant market information 
and other assumptions, as more fully disclosed in a 
separate note. Fair value estimates involve uncertainties 
and matters of significant judgment regarding interest 
rates, credit risk, prepayments, and other factors, 
especially in the absence of broad markets for particular 
items. Changes in assumptions or in market conditions 
could significantly affect these estimates. 

reClaSSifiCatiONS: Certain reclassifications 
have been made to prior period financial statements 
to conform to the current year presentation. These 
reclassifications had no impact on the Bank’s previously 
reported net income or shareholders’ equity. 

adoption of New accounting Standards and 
Newly issued Not Yet effective accounting 
Standards 

The following are descriptions of recently adopted or 
newly issued not yet effective accounting standards that 
could have a material effect on our financial statements: 

ASU 2013-12, Definition of a Public Business 
Entity: An Addition to the Master Glossary: 
In December 2013, the FASB amended the 
Glossary of the Codification to include a single 
definition of a public business entity for future use 
in U.S. GAAP. The definition of a public business 
entity will be used in considering the scope of 
new financial guidance and will identify whether 
the guidance does or does not apply to public 
business entities. The amendment does not affect 
existing requirements and there is no effective 
date. The effect of adopting this standard did not 
have a material effect on the Bank’s operating 
results or financial condition. 

ASU 2014-04, Receivables – Troubled Debt 
Restructurings by Creditors (Subtopic 310-
40) – Reclassification of Residential Real Estate 
Collateralized Consumer Mortgage Loans Upon 
Foreclosure: 
In January 2014, the FASB amended existing 
guidance to clarify when a creditor should be 
considered to have received physical possession 
of residential real estate property collateralizing a 
consumer mortgage loan such that the loan should 
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be derecognized and the real estate recognized. 
These amendments clarify that an in substance 
repossession or foreclosure occurs, and a 
creditor is considered to have received physical 
possession of residential real estate property 
collateralizing a consumer mortgage loan, upon 
either: (1) the creditor obtaining legal title to the 
residential real estate property upon completion 
of a foreclosure, or (2) the borrower conveying all 
interest in the residential real estate property to 
the creditor to satisfy that loan through completion 
of a deed in lieu of foreclosure or through a 
similar legal agreement. Additional disclosures 
are required. These amendments are effective 
for annual periods and interim periods within 
those annual periods beginning after December 
15, 2014. Amendments in this standard can 
be applied using a modified retrospective and 
prospective transition method. Early adoption is 
permitted. The adoption of this standard is not 
expected to have a material effect on the Bank’s 
operating results or financial condition. 

ASU 2014-09, Revenue From Contracts With 
Customers: 
In May 2014 the FASB amended existing guidance 
related to revenue from contracts with customers. 
This amendment supersedes and replaces 
nearly all existing revenue recognition guidance, 
including industry-specific guidance, establishes 
a new control-based revenue recognition model, 
changes the basis for deciding when revenue is 
recognized over time or at a point in time, provides 
new and more detailed guidance on specific topics 
and expands and improves disclosures about 
revenue. In addition, this amendment specifies 
the accounting for some costs to obtain or fulfill a 
contract with a customer. These amendments are 
effective for annual reporting periods beginning 
after December 15, 2016, including interim periods 
within that reporting period. Early application 
is not permitted. The amendments should be 
applied retrospectively to all periods presented 
or retrospectively with the cumulative effect 
recognized at the date of initial application. The 
Bank is currently evaluating the impact of this new 
accounting standard on the financial statements. 

ASU 2014-14, Receivables – Troubled Debt 

Restructurings by Creditors (Subtopic 310-40): 

Classification of Certain Government-Guaranteed 
Mortgage Loans Upon Foreclosure: 
In August 2014, the FASB amended existing 
guidance related to the classification of certain 
government-guaranteed mortgage loans, 
including those guaranteed by the FHA and the VA, 
upon foreclosure. It requires that a mortgage loan 
be derecognized and a separate other receivable 
be recognized upon foreclosure if the following 
conditions are met: 1) The loan has a government 
guarantee that is not separable from the loan 
before foreclosure; 2) At the time of foreclosure, 
the creditor has the intent to convey the real 
estate property to the guarantor and make a 
claim on the guarantee, and the creditor has the 
ability to recover under that claim; and 3) At the 
time of foreclosure, any amount of the claim that 
is determined on the basis of the fair value of the 
real estate is fixed. Upon foreclosure, the separate 
other receivable should be measured based on the 
amount of the loan balance (principal and interest) 
expected to be recovered from the guarantor. 
These amendments are effective for annual 
periods, and interim periods within those annual 
periods, beginning after December 15, 2014. 
Early adoption is permitted if the amendments 
under ASU 2014-04 Receivables – Troubled Debt 
Restructurings by Creditors – Reclassification of 
Residential Real Estate Collateralized Consumer 
Mortgage Loans Upon Foreclosure has been 
adopted. The amendments may be applied using a 
prospective transition method in which a reporting 
entity applies the guidance to foreclosures that 
occur after the date of adoption, or a modified 
retrospective transition using a cumulative-effect 
adjustment (through a reclassification to a separate 
other receivable) as of the beginning of the annual 
period of adoption. Prior periods should not be 
adjusted. A reporting entity must apply the same 
method of transition as elected under ASU 2014-
04. The adoption of this standard is not expected 
to have a material effect on the Bank’s operating 
results or financial condition. 
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note 2. InveStment SeCurItIeS 

The following tables summarize the amortized cost and fair value of securities available for sale and held to maturity 
at December 31, 2014, and 2013 and the corresponding amounts of gross unrealized gains and losses recognized 
in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and gross unrecognized gains and losses: 

Gross Gross 
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated 

December 31, 2014 Cost Gains Losses Fair Value 
Available for sale:
     U.S. government sponsored agencies 
     Collateralized mortgage obligations 
     State and political subdivision 
     Corporate 
Total available for sale 

$ 3,021,895 
7,570,920 

422,318 
109,826 

$ 11,124,959 

$ 6,699 
41,921 
3,028 

675 
$ 52,323 

$ (2,094) 
(15,580) 

(82) 
(20) 

$ (17,776) 

$ 3,026,500 
7,597,261

425,264
110,481 

$ 11,159,506 

Gross Gross 
Amortized 

Cost 
Unrecognized 

Gains 
Unrecognized 

Losses 
Estimated 
Fair Value 

Held to maturity:
     U.S. government sponsored agencies 
     Mortgage backed securities: residential 
     Collateralized mortgage obligations 
     State and political subdivision 
     Corporate 
Total held to maturity 

$ 8,833,556 
8,323,655 

16,537,757 
12,685,251 

-
$ 46,380,219 

$ 116,264 
181,060 
306,924 
681,507 

-
$ 1,285,755 

$ -
-

(9,517) 
-
-

$ (9,517) 

$ 8,949,820 
8,504,715

16,835,164
13,366,758

-
$ 47,656,457

Gross Gross 

Amortized unrecognized unrecognized estimated 

december 31, 2013 Cost Gains losses fair value 

Held to maturity: 
U.S. government sponsored agencies
Mortgage backed securities: residential 
Collateralized mortgage obligations 
State and political subdivision 
Corporate 

Total held to maturity

 $ 

$ 

8,157,484
11,130,633 
19,726,193 
13,702,110 

549,585 
53,266,005

 $ 

$ 

41,082
43,879 
23,247 

126,025 
560 

234,793 

$ 

$ 

(19,581)
(7,252) 

(71,169) 
(15,175) 

(4) 
(113,181)

 $ 

$ 

8,178,985 
11,167,260 
19,678,271 
13,812,960 

550,141 
53,387,617 

During the third quarter of 2013, the Bank transferred $43,169,507 of available for sale securities to the held to 
maturity category. There were no transfers between available for sale and held to maturity during 2014. 

The Bank had no sales of investments during 2014. Proceeds from sales and calls of investment securities and 
associated gains and losses during 2013 are listed below: 

2013 

                                     Proceeds 607,187
                                     Gains 31,782
                                     Losses (1) 

The tax provision related to the net realized gains and losses were $13,079 for year end 2013. The Bank did not 
recognize any gains or losses on securities during 2014. 
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The amortized cost and estimated fair value of debt securities are shown by contractual maturity. Expected maturities 
may differ from contractual maturities if borrowers have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or 
prepayment penalties. Securities not due at a single maturity date are shown separately. 

2014 
Amortized Estimated 

Cost Fair Value 

Available for sale:
     Within one year $ 76,465 $ 76,410 
     One to five years 3,126,601 3,131,882
     Five to ten years 350,973 353,953
     Beyond ten years - -
Mortgage-backed securities 7,570,920 7,597,261 
Total $ 11,124,959 $ 11,159,506 

Held to maturity:
     Within one year $ 268,020 $ 268,492 
     One to five years 10,319,333 10,468,903
     Five to ten years 4,288,655 4,474,090
     Beyond ten years 6,642,800 7,105,094 
Mortgage-backed securities 24,861,412 25,339,878 
Total $ 46,380,219 $ 47,656,457 

Investment securities pledged to secure public deposits at year end December 31, 2014 and 2013 had a carrying 
amount of $20,993,000 and $17,703,000, respectively. 

At year end 2014 and 2013, there were no holdings of securities of any one issuer, other than the U.S. Government 
and its agencies, in an amount greater than 10% of shareholders’ equity. 

The following table summarizes investment securities with unrealized losses at December 31, 2014 and 2013 
aggregated by major security type and length of time in a continuous unrealized loss position: 

December 31, 2014: Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total 
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized 

Held to maturity: Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
    U.S. government sponsored agencies $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
    Collateralized mortgage obligations 1,343,623 (5,591) 347,976 (3,927) 1,691,599 (9,517)
    State and political subdivision - - - - - -
    Corporate - - - - - -
Total held to maturity: $ 1,343,623 $ (5,591) $ 347,976 $ (3,927) $ 1,691,599 $ (9,517) 

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total 
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized 

Available for sale: Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
    U.S. government sponsored agencies $ 1,003,760 $ (2,094) $ - $ - $ 1,003,760 $ (2,094) 
    Collateralized mortgage obligations 4,832,812 (15,580) - - 4,832,812 (15,580)
    State and political subdivision 50,976 (82) - - 50,976 (82)
    Corporate 5,099 (20) - - 5,099 (20) 
Total available for sale: $ 5,892,647 $ (17,776) $ - $ - $ 5,892,647 $ (17,776) 

December 31, 2013: Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total 
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized 

Held to maturity: Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
    U.S. government sponsored agencies $ 4,460,230 $ (19,581) $ - $ - $ 4,460,230 $ (19,581) 
    Mortgage backed securities: residential 3,391,395 (7,252) - - 3,391,395 (7,252)
    Collateralized mortgage obligations 12,455,357 (71,169) - - 12,455,357 (71,169)
    State and political subdivision 1,489,828 (15,175) - - 1,489,828 (15,175)
    Corporate 12,163 (4) - - 12,163 (4) 
Total held to maturity: $ 21,808,973 $ (113,181) $ - $ - $ 21,808,973 $ (113,181) 
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As of December 31, 2014, the Bank’s security portfolio commitment to support. Because the decline in fair 
consisted of 116 investment securities, 10 of which were value is attributable to changes in interest rates and 
in an unrealized loss position less than twelve months illiquidity, and not credit quality, and because the Bank 
and 1 over twelve months. The majority of unrealized does not have the intent to sell these mortgage backed 
losses are related to the Bank’s collateralized mortgage securities and it is likely that it will not be required to 
obligations as discussed below. sell the securities before their anticipated recovery, the 

Bank does not consider these securities to be other-
COllateralizeD mOrtgage ObligatiONS: than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2014. The 
At December 31, 2014, 100% of the collateralized Bank’s mortgage backed securities portfolio does not 
mortgage obligations held by the Bank were issued by include non-agency collateralized mortgage obligations. 
U.S. Government or government-sponsored entities 
and agencies, primarily Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, 
institutions which the government has affirmed its 

note 3. loAnS reCeIvAble 

The outstanding loan portfolio balances at December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows: 

December 31, 
2014 2013 

Commercial and industrial 
Commercial real estate 
Land and construction 
Agricultural land, real estate and production 
Consumer 
Gross loans receivable 

$ 85,459,268 $ 67,853,035 
125,239,850 116,132,352 
10,746,164 7,451,251 
19,103,279 11,249,567 
42,135,267 31,726,162 

282,683,829 234,412,367 

Net deferred loan fees 
Allowance for loan losses 

1,290,898 
(6,402,752) 

561,302 
(5,705,862) 

Loans receivable, net $ 277,571,975 $ 229,267,807 
The following 

table shows the allocation of the allowance for loan losses by portfolio segment for the years ended The following table shows the allocation of the allowance for loan losses by portfolio segment for the years ended 
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013: December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013: 

Agricultural Land, 
Commercial and Commercial Land and Real Estate and 

December 31, 2014: Industrial Real Estate Construction Production Consumer Unallocated Total 
Allowance for loan losses: 

Beginning balance $ 2,016,912 $ 2,320,293 $ 661,037 $ 45,303 $ 512,672 $ 149,645 $ 5,705,862 
Provision for loan losses 303,914 (246,832) 360,857 62,591 129,723 139,747 750,000 
Loans charged-off (66,666) - (500) - (67,166) 
Recoveries 4,057 7,499 - - 2,500 - 14,056 

Total ending allowance balance $ 2,258,217 $ 2,080,960 $ 1,021,894 $ 107,894 $ 644,395 $ 289,392 $ 6,402,752 

December 31, 2013: 
Commercial and 

Industrial 
Commercial 
Real Estate 

Land and 
Construction 

Agricultural Land, 
Real Estate and 

Production Consumer Unallocated Total 
Allowance for loan losses: 

Beginning balance 2,105,429 $ 1,699,617 $ 289,215 $ 57,486 $ 583,790 $ 313,040 $ 5,048,577 $ 
Provision for loan losses (62,238) 654,467 141,967 (12,183) (71,118) (163,395) 487,500 
Loans charged-off (39,411) (42,541) - (81,952) 
Recoveries 13,132 8,750 229,855 - - 251,737 

Total ending allowance balance 2,016,912 $ 2,320,293 $ 661,037 $ 45,303 $ 512,672 $ 149,645 $ 5,705,862 $ 
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The following table shows the balance in the allowance for loan losses and the recorded investment in loans by 
portfolio segment and based on impairment method as of December 31, 2014 and 2013: 

Agricultural Land,
 
Commercial and Commercial Real Land and Real Estate and 


December 31, 2014: Industrial Estate Construction Production Consumer Unallocated Total
 
Allowance for loan losses 
Ending allowance balance attributable to loans: 
Individually evaluated for impairment $ 578 $ 45,567 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 46,145 
Collectively evaluated for impairment 2,257,639 2,035,393 1,021,894 107,894 644,395 289,392 6,356,607 

Total ending allowance balance $ 2,258,217 $ 2,080,960 $ 1,021,894 $ 107,894 $ 644,395 $ 289,392 $ 6,402,752 

Loans 
Loans individually evaluated for impairment $ 2,862 $ 302,153 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 305,015 
Loans collectively evaluated for impairment 85,456,406 124,937,697 10,746,164 19,103,279 42,135,267 282,378,814 

Total ending loans balance $ 85,459,268 $ 125,239,850 $ 10,746,164 $ 19,103,279 $ 42,135,267 $ - $ 282,683,829 

December 31, 2013: 
Commercial 
and Industrial 

Commercial Real 
Estate 

Land and 
Construction 

Agricultural Land, 
Real Estate and 

Production Consumer Unallocated Total 
Allowance for loan losses 
Ending allowance balance attributable to loans: 
Individually evaluated for impairment 59,742 $ 63,605 $ -$ -$ -$ -$ 123,347 $ 
Collectively evaluated for impairment 1,957,170 2,256,688 661,037 45,303 512,672 149,645 5,582,515 

Total ending allowance balance 2,016,912 $ 2,320,293 $ 661,037 $ 45,303 $ 512,672 $ 149,645 $ 5,705,862 $ 

Loans 
Loans individually evaluated for impairment 265,819 $ 356,377 $ -$ -$ -$ -$ 622,196 $ 
Loans collectively evaluated for impairment 67,587,216 115,775,975 7,451,251 11,249,567 31,726,162 - 233,790,171 

Total ending loans balance 67,853,035 $ 116,132,352 $ 7,451,251 $ 11,249,567 $ 31,726,162 $ -$ 234,412,367 $ 

The following table shows information related to impaired loans, by class of loans, as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013: The following table shows information related to impaired loans, by class of loans, as of and for the year ended 

Unpaid 
Principal 
Balance 

Recorded 
Investment 

Allowance for 
loan losses 
allocated 

Average 
Recorded 
Investment 

Interest 
Income 

Recognized 

Cash Basis 
Interest 

Recognized 
With no related allowance recorded: 
Commercial real estate 143,358 $ 143,358 $ -$ 147,137 $ 6,787 $ -$
   Total 143,358 143,358 - 147,137 6,787 -

With an allowance recorded: 
Commercial and industrial 2,862 2,862 578 3,411 505 -
Commercial real estate 158,795 158,795 45,567 112,104 10,860 -
   Total 161,657 161,657 46,145 115,515 11,365 -

Total: 
Commercial and industrial 2,862 2,862 578 3,411 505 -
Commercial real estate 302,153 302,153 45,567 259,241 17,648 -
   Total 305,015 $ 305,015 $ 46,145 $ 262,652 $ 18,153 $ -$ 

Impaired Loans 
For the Year ended December 31, 2014 

Unpaid 
Principal 
Balance 

Recorded 
Investment 

Allowance for 
loan losses 
allocated 

Average 
Recorded 

Investment 

Interest 
Income 

Recognized 

Cash Basis 
Interest 

Recognized 
With no related allowance recorded: 
Commercial real estate 102,715 $ 42,509 $ -$ 43,983 $ -$ 8,128 $ 
   Total 102,715 42,509 - 43,983 - 8,128 

With an allowance recorded: 
Commercial and industrial 265,819 265,819 59,742 212,436 20,271 -
Commercial real estate 313,868 313,868 63,605 264,723 28,038 -
   Total 579,687 579,687 123,347 477,159 48,309 -

Total: 
Commercial and industrial 265,819 265,819 59,742 212,436 20,271 -
Commercial real estate 416,583 356,377 63,605 308,706 28,038 8,128
   Total 682,402 $ 622,196 $ 123,347 $ 521,142 $ 48,309 $ 8,128 $ 

Impaired Loans 
For the Year ended December 31, 2013 

December 31, 2014 and 2013: 
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The recorded investment in loans excludes accrued interest receivable and loan origination fees, net due to 
immateriality. For purposes of this disclosure, the unpaid principal balance is not reduced for partial charge-offs. 

Non-accrual loans and loans past due 90 days still on accrual include both smaller balance homogeneous loans that 
are collectively evaluated for impairment and individually classified as impaired loans. 

The Bank had no past due or non-accrual loans as of December 31, 2014. The following table shows an aging 
analysis of the recorded investment in past due loans as of December 31, 2013 by class of loans: 

30-89 Days 90 Days and 
December 31, 2013 Past Due Still Accruing Nonaccrual Total Past Due Current Total 
Commercial and industrial $ 30,364 $ 261,228 $ - $ 291,592 $ 67,561,443 $ 67,853,035 
Commercial real estate - - 42,509 42,509 116,089,843 116,132,352 
Land and construction - - - - 7,451,251 7,451,251 
Agricultural land, real estate and production - - - - 11,249,567 11,249,567 
Consumer 139,481 - - 139,481 31,586,681 31,726,162
   Total $ 169,845 $ 261,228 $ 42,509 $ 473,582 $ 233,938,785 $ 234,412,367 

troubled Debt restructurings:Troubled Debt Restructurings: 
As of December 31, 2014 the Bank had no troubled debt restructurings and a recorded investment of As of December 31, 2014 the Bank had no troubled debt restructurings and a recorded investment of $261,228 
$261,228 in 2013. The Bank allocated $59,689 in specific reserves to customers whose loan terms have in 2013. The Bank allocated $59,689 in specific reserves to customers whose loan terms have been modified in
been modified in troubled debt restructurings as of December 31, 2013. The Bank has not committed to lend troubled debt restructurings as of December 31, 2013. The Bank has not committed to lend additional amountsadditional amounts as of December 31, 2014 to customers with outstanding loans that are classified as 

as of December 31, 2014 to customers with outstanding loans that are classified as troubled debt restructurings.troubled debt restructurings. 

During the year ending December 31, 2014, there were no loans modified as troubled debt restructurings. During During the year ending December 31, 2014, there were no loans modified as troubled debt restructurings. 
the year ending December 31, 2013, the terms of certain loans were modified as troubled debt restructurings. TheDuring the year ending December 31, 2013, the terms of certain loans were modified as troubled debt 

restructurings. The modification of the terms of such loans included one or a combination of the following: a modification of the terms of such loans included one or a combination of the following: a reduction of the stated 
interest rate of the loan; an extension of the maturity date at a stated rate of interest lower than the current marketreduction of the stated interest rate of the loan; an extension of the maturity date at a stated rate of interest 

lower than the current market rate for new debt with similar risk; or a permanent reduction of the recorded rate for new debt with similar risk; or a permanent reduction of the recorded investment in the loan. 
investment in the loan. 

Modifications involving a reduction of the stated interest rate of the loan were for periods ranging from 6 months 
Modifications involving a reduction of the stated interest rate of the loan were for periods ranging from 6 to 1 year. Modifications involving an extension of the maturity date were for periods ranging from 6 months to
months to 1 year. Modifications involving an extension of the maturity date were for periods ranging from 6 1 year.
months to 1 year. 

The following table presents loans by class modified as troubled debt restructurings that occurred during the year
The following table presents loans by class modified as troubled debt restructurings that occurred during the ending December 31, 2013:year ending December 31, 2013: 

Modifications 

Pre-modification Post-modification 
Outstanding Outstanding 

Number of Recorded Recorded 
December 31, 2013 Loans Investments Investments 
Troubled Debt Restructuring: 
Commercial 1 261,228 $ 261,228 $ 

There were no troubled debt restructurings that subsequently defaulted in 2014 or 2013, respectively. For the years 
There were no troubled debt restructurings that subsequently defaulted in 2014 or 2013, respectively. For ending December 31, 2014 and 2013, the troubled debt restructurings did not increase the allowance for loan
the years ending December 31, 2014 and 2013, the troubled debt restructurings did not increase the losses and resulted in no charge-offs.
allowance for loan losses and resulted in no charge-offs. 
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Credit quality indicators: 
The Bank assigns a risk rating to all loans and 
periodically performs detailed reviews of all such 
loans over a certain threshold to identify credit risks 
and to assess the overall collectability of the portfolio. 
These risk ratings are also subject to examination by 
independent specialists engaged by the Bank and 
the Bank’s regulators. During these internal reviews, 
management monitors and analyzes the financial 
condition of borrowers and guarantors, trends in the 
industries in which borrowers operate and the fair 
values of collateral securing these loans. These credit 
quality indicators are used to assign a risk rating to 
each individual loan. The risk ratings can be grouped 
into five major categories, defined as follows: 

pass – A pass loan is a credit with no existing 
or known potential weaknesses deserving of 
management’s close attention. 

Special mention – A special mention loan has 
potential weaknesses that deserve management’s 
close attention. If left uncorrected, these potential 
weaknesses may result in deterioration of the 
repayment prospects for the loan or in the Bank’s 
credit position at some future date. Special 
Mention loans are not adversely classified and do 
not expose the Bank to sufficient risk to warrant 
adverse classification. 

Substandard – A substandard loan is not 
adequately protected by the current sound worth 
and paying capacity of the borrower or the value 
of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans classified 
as substandard have a well-defined weakness or 
weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the 
debt. Well defined weaknesses include a project’s 
lack of marketability, inadequate cash flow or 
collateral support, failure to complete construction 
on time or the project’s failure to fulfill economic 
expectations. They are characterized by the 
distinct possibility that the Bank will sustain some 
loss if the deficiencies are not corrected. 

Doubtful –Loans classified doubtful have all 
the weaknesses inherent in those classified as 
substandard with the added characteristic that the 
weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, 
on the basis of currently known facts, conditions 
and values, highly questionable, and improbable. 

loss – Loans classified as loss are considered 
uncollectible and charged off immediately. 

The following table shows the loan portfolio by class allocated by management’s internal risk ratings at December 
31, 2014 and 2013: 

December 31, 2014 
Commercial and 

Industrial 
Commercial Real 

Estate 
Land and 

Construction 

Agricultural Land, 
Real Estate and 

Production Consumer Total 
Pass 84,758,615 $ 123,358,806 $ 10,746,164 $ 19,103,279 $ 42,131,210 $ 280,098,074 $ 
Special Mention 668,633 1,540,016 - - - 2,208,649 
Substandard 32,020 341,029 - - 4,057 377,106 
Doubtful - - - - - -
     Total 85,459,268 $ 125,239,851 $ 10,746,164 $ 19,103,279 $ 42,135,267 $ 282,683,829 $ 

December 31, 2013 
Commercial and 

Industrial 
Commercial Real 

Estate 
Land and 

Construction 

Agricultural Land, 
Real Estate and 

Production Consumer Total 
Pass 67,416,816 $ 113,051,326 $ 7,451,251 $ 11,249,567 $ 30,563,177 $ 229,732,137 $ 
Special Mention 436,219 2,819,798 - - 1,155,748 4,411,765 
Substandard 261,228 - - 7,237 268,465 
Doubtful - - - - -
     Total 67,853,035 $ 116,132,352 $ 7,451,251 $ 11,249,567 $ 31,726,162 $ 234,412,367 $ 
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note 4. reAl eStAte oWned 

2014 2013 

Beginning balance 358,584 $ 3,166,000 $ 
Loans transferred to real estate owned - 216,327 
Capitalized expenditures - 162,699 
Recovery / (write-downs) (200,000) 111,163 
Sale proceeds of real estate owned, net of gain (158,584) (3,297,605) 

End of year 0$ 358,584 $ 

Real estate owned activity was as follows: 

Expenses related to real estate owned nclude: Expenses related to real estate owned include: 

Net gain on sales 
Write-downs 
Operating expenses, net of rental income 

End of year 

note 5. fAIr vAlue 

fair value hierarChY 

2014 2013 

$ (55,020) 
200,000 
28,799 

$ (57,072) 
-

38,804 

$ 173,779 $ (18,268) 

The Bank groups its assets and liabilities measured at fair value in three levels, based on the markets in which the 
assets and liabilities are traded and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair value. Valuations within 
these levels are based upon: 

level 1 – Quoted prices (unadjusted) for 
identical assets or liabilities in active markets 
that the entity has the ability to access as of the 
measurement date. 

level 2 – Significant other observable inputs 
other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices 
for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in 
markets that are not active; or other inputs that are 
observable or can be corroborated by observable 
market data. 

level 3 – Significant unobservable inputs that 
reflect a company’s own assumptions about the 
assumptions that market participants would use 
in pricing an asset or liability. 

The Bank used the following methods and significant 
assumptions to estimate fair value: 

CaSh aND CaSh equivaleNtS: The carrying 
amount of cash and cash equivalents is a reasonable 
estimate of fair value and are classified as Level 1. 

iNtereSt-beariNg DepOSitS iN Other 

fiNaNCial iNStitutiONS: The fair values were 
calculated using discounted cash flow models based on 
market rates resulting in a Level 2 classification. 

iNveStmeNt SeCuritieS: The fair values of 
securities classified as available for sale and held 
to maturity are based on quoted market prices, if 
available (Level 1) at the reporting date. For securities 
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where quoted prices are not available, fair values are 
calculated based on market prices of similar securities 
(Level 2). For securities where quoted prices or market 
prices of similar securities are not available, fair values 
are calculated using discounted cash flows or other 
market indicators (Level 3). 

lOaNS helD fOr Sale: Loans held for sale 
are carried at the lower of cost or fair value, which is 
evaluated on a pool-level basis. The fair value of loans 
held for sale is determined using quoted prices for similar 
assets, adjusted for specific attributes of that loan or 
other observable market data, such as outstanding 
commitments from third party investors (Level 2). 

lOaNS: The fair value of fixed rate loans is determined 
as the present value of expected future cash flows 
discounted at the interest rate currently offered by the 
Bank, which approximates rates currently offered by 
local lending institutions for loans of similar terms to 
companies with comparable credit risk resulting in a 
Level 3 classification. Variable rate loans which re-price 
frequently with changes in approximate market rates 
were valued using the outstanding principal balance 
resulting in a Level 3 classification. The estimated fair 
value of loan commitments and contingent liabilities 
at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 
approximate their current book values. 

impaireD lOaNS: The fair value of impaired 
loans with specific allocations of the allowance for 
loan losses is generally based on recent real estate 
appraisals. These appraisals may utilize a single 
valuation approach or a combination of approaches 
including comparable sales and the income approach. 
Adjustments are routinely made in the appraisal 
process by the independent appraisers to adjust for 
differences between the comparable sales and income 
data available. Such adjustments are usually significant 
and typically result in a Level 3 classification of the 
inputs for determining fair value. 

real eState OwNeD: Non-recurring adjustments to 
certain commercial and residential real estate properties 
classified as real estate owned are measured at fair 
value, less costs to sell. Fair values are based on recent 
real estate appraisals. These appraisals may use a single 
valuation approach or a combination of approaches 
including comparable sales and the income approach. 
Adjustments are routinely made in the appraisal process 
by the independent appraisers to adjust for differences 
between the comparable sales and income data 
available. Such adjustments are usually significant and 
typically result in a Level 3 classification of the inputs for 
determining fair value. 

baNkerS’ baNk StOCk: Bankers’ Bank Stock 
includes Federal Home Loan Bank Stock and Pacific 
Coast Bankers Bank Stock. The Federal Home Loan 
Bank investment is carried at cost and is redeemable 
at par with certain restrictions. It is not practical to 
determine fair value of bank stock due to restrictions 
placed on transferability. 

aCCrueD iNtereSt reCeivable/paYable: The 
carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate their 
fair value resulting in a Level 2 or Level 3 classification. 

DepOSitS: The fair values of demand deposits, 
savings deposits, and money market deposits without 
defined maturities were the amounts payable on 
demand resulting in a Level 1 classification. For variable 
rate deposits where the Bank has the contractual 
right to change rates, carrying value was assumed to 
approximate fair value resulting in a Level 1 classification. 

CertifiCateS Of DepOSit: For deposits with 
defined maturities, the fair values were calculated using 
discounted cash flow models based on market interest 
rates for different product types and maturity dates. The 
discount rates used were based on rates for comparable 
deposits resulting in a Level 2 classification. 
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aSSetS reCOrDeD at fair value 
The Bank’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring and non-recurring basis as of December 31, 
2014 and 2013 are summarized below: 

reCurriNg baSiS 
The Bank is required or permitted to record the following assets at fair value on a recurring basis. 

December 31, 2014 
Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Securities available for sale:
    U.S. government sponsored agencies $ 3,026,500 $ - $ 3,026,500 $ -
    Mortgage backed securities: residential - - - -
    Collateralized mortgage obligations 7,597,261 - 7,597,261 -
    State and political subdivision 425,264 - 425,264 -
    Corporate 110,481 - 110,481 -
Total assets measured at fair value $ 11,159,506 $ - $ 11,159,506 $ -

Fair values for available for sale investment securities are based on quoted market prices for similar securities. The 
Bank did not have securities available for sale at year end December 31, 2013. During the year ended December 
31, 2014 and 2013, there were no transfers in or out of Levels 1 and 2. 

There were no recurring Level 3 assets or liabilities measured at fair value during 2014 or 2013. 

NON-reCurriNg baSiS 
The Bank may be required, from time to time, to measure certain assets at fair value on a non-recurring basis. 
These include assets that are measured at the lower of cost or market value that were recognized at fair value 
which was below cost at the reporting date: 

December 31, 2014: 
Total Gains and 

Fair Value Lever 1 Level 2 Level 3 (Losses) l 

Impaired Loans: 
Commercial and industrial $ 2,284 $ - $ - $ 2,284 $ (525) 
Commercial and real estate 113,228 - - 113,228 5,928 

Total ending loans balance $ 115,512 $ - $ - $ 115,512 $ 5,403 

December 31, 2013 
Total 

Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 (Losses)
     Impaired loans:
        Commercial and industrial 
        Commercial real estate 
     Real estate owned:

        Commercial real estate
 
        Land and construction
 
Total assets measured at fair value 

The impaired loans and real estate owned fair values 
are determined using independent appraisers. The 
Bank considers these third-party appraisals as Level 
3 classifications due to the significant unobservable 
inputs used to measure the fair values of these 
properties. These unobservable inputs include 

$ 207,076 
250,263 

$ -
-

$ -
-

$ 207,076 
250,263 

$ (5,437) 
(8,754)

158,584 
200,000 

-
-

-
-

158,584 
200,000 

-
-

$ 815,923 $ - $ - $ 815,923 $ (14,191) 

adjustments for differences between comparable 
sales and discount rates. 

The following table presents the carrying amounts and 
estimated fair values of the Bank’s financial instruments 
at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013. The 
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fair value of financial instruments does not represent The respective carrying values of certain on-balance-
actual amounts that may be realized upon any sale or sheet financial instruments approximated their fair 
liquidation of the related assets or liabilities. In addition, values. These financial instruments include accrued 
these values do not give effect to discounts to fair interest receivable and accrued interest payable. 
value which may occur when financial instruments Carrying values were assumed to approximate fair 
are sold in larger quantities. The fair values presented values for these financial instruments as they are short 
represent the Bank’s best estimate of fair value using term in nature and their recorded amounts approximate 
the methodologies discussed below. fair values or are receivable or payable on demand. The 

Bank does not use derivative financial instruments. 

December 31, 2014
 
Carrying
 

(Dollars in thousands) Amount
 Total
 
Financial Assets:
 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,505
 $ 9,505 
Interest bearing deposits in other
    Financial Institutions 67,592 67,580 
Securities available-for-sale 11,160 11,160 
Securities held-to-maturity 46,380 47,656 
Loans held for sale 32,938 32,938 
Loans, net 277,572 286,633 
Bankers' Bank stock 1,591 N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Accrued interest receivable 1,411 56 338 1,017 1,411 

Financial Liabilities:
 
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits $ 191,789
 $ 191,789 
Interest-bearing demand deposits 45,904 46,888 
Savings and money market deposits 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

9,505 $ -$ -$ 

- 67,580 -
- 11,160 -
- 47,656 -
- 32,938 -
- - 286,633 

191,789 $ -$ -$ 
46,888 - -

111,514 - -
64,693 - 64,707 -

111,600 111,514 
Time certificates of deposit 64,707 
Accrued interest payable 73 5 68 - 73 

December 31, 2013 
Carrying
 

(Dollars in thousands) Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
 
Financial Assets:
 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,131 $ 12,131 $ - $ - $ 12,131 
Interest bearing deposits in other
    Financial Institutions 66,716 - 67,426 - 67,426 
Securities available-for-sale - - - - -
Securities held-to-maturity 53,266 - 53,388 - 53,388 
Loans held for sale 23,716 - 23,716 - 23,716 
Loans, net 229,268 - - 233,527 233,527 
Bankers' Bank stock 1,354 N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Accrued interest receivable 

Financial Liabilities: 
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits 
Interest-bearing demand deposits 
Savings and money market deposits 
Time certificates of deposit 
Accrued interest payable 89 4 85 - 89 

1,313 18 410 885 1,313 

166,022 $ 166,022 $ -$ -$ 166,022 $ 
43,827 43,663 - - 43,663 
89,055 89,002 - - 89,002 
61,336 - 61,366 - 61,366 
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Management monitors the availability of observable 
market data to assess the appropriate classification 
of financial instruments within the fair value hierarchy. 
Changes in economic conditions or model-based 
valuation techniques may require the transfer of financial 
instruments from one fair value level to another. In such 
instances, the transfer is reported at the beginning of 
the reporting period.

Management evaluates the significance of transfers 
between levels based upon the nature of the financial 
instrument and size of the transfer relative to total 
assets, total liabilities or total earnings.

note 6. loAn ServICInG

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BANK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6. LOAN SERVICING

Activity for loan servicing rights follows:

The Bank reviews servicing rights for impairment periodically and there was no valuation allowance 
recorded in 2014 or 2013.

NOTE 7. PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

The following presents the cost of premises and equipment including leasehold improvements and the 
related accumulated depreciation and amortization at December 31, 2014 and 2013:

Depreciation expense was $339,510 and $389,132 for 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Operating Leases: The Bank leases various branch properties and equipment under long-term operating 
lease agreements. These leases expire on various dates through 2020 and have various renewal options of 
five years each. Some leases may include a free rent period or have net operating costs associated with 
them.

In addition to the office building leases, the Bank has two leases for ATM & night depository kiosks. The 
operating leases had initial terms of five years each and various renewal options of three years each.

Building and kiosk rent expense for the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, was approximately 
$590,000 and $564,000, respectively. Lease commitments, before considering renewal options that 
generally are present, for future years are as follows: 

2014 2013
Loan servicing rights:
Beginning of year 588,903$ 509,364$
Additions 398,139 289,384
Disposals (32,571) (10,476)
Amortized to expense (233,781) (199,369)
End of year 720,690$ 588,903$

2014 2013

Leasehold improvements 1,747,411$ 1,743,123$
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1,751,204 1,660,404
Software and capitalized data & item processing 234,425 234,425
Computer equipment 732,114 654,856
     Total premises and equipment 4,465,154 4,292,808
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (3,698,145) (3,453,792)
          Premises and equipment, net 767,009$ 839,016$

December 31,

Activity for loan servicing rights follows:

The Bank reviews servicing rights for impairment periodically and there was no valuation allowance recorded 
in 2014 or 2013.

The following presents the cost of premises and equipment including leasehold improvements and the related 
accumulated depreciation and amortization at December 31, 2014 and 2013:

Depreciation expense was $339,510 and $389,132 for 2014 and 2013, respectively.

OperatiNg leaSeS: The Bank leases various branch properties and equipment under long-term operating lease 
agreements. These leases expire on various dates through 2020 and have various renewal options of five years 
each. Some leases may include a free rent period or have net operating costs associated with them.

In addition to the office building leases, the Bank has two leases for ATM & night depository kiosks. The operating 
leases had initial terms of five years each and various renewal options of three years each.

note 7. PremISeS And eQuIPment
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SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BANK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8. DEPOSITS

Interest-bearing deposits consisted of the following:

Time deposits that meet or exceed the FDIC Insurance limit of $250,000 at year end 2014 and 2013 were 
$16,815,802 and $18,284,799, respectively.

The scheduled maturities for all time deposits for the next 5 years were as follows:

As of December 31, 2014 the Bank had brokered deposits totaling $5,100,130 and no brokered deposits at 
December 31, 2013. Interest expense on time deposits of $100,000 or more was $111,432 and $137,012 in 
2014 and 2013, respectively.

NOTE 9. BORROWED FUNDS

At December 31, 2014, the Bank had federal funds borrowing guidance lines with its correspondent banks in 
an aggregate amount of $11.0 million on an unsecured basis. In addition, the Bank has established a 
secured borrowing arrangement, secured by its investment portfolio, with the Federal Home Loan Bank of 
San Francisco (“FHLB”). As of December 31, 2014, the Bank had $104,498,112 in borrowing capacity 
available through the FHLB under which overnight and term advances were available. These advances are 
secured by assets including the Bank’s ownership interest in the capital stock of the FHLB, securities and 
loans. 

Year ending December 31,

2015 598,000
2016 583,000
2017 512,000
2018 335,000
2019 81,000
Thereafter 18,000

2,127,000$

2014 2013

NOW accounts  $       45,904,073  $   43,827,440 
Money Market           85,151,918       66,959,644 
Time Deposits           64,693,201       61,336,330 
Savings           26,447,754       22,094,816 

 $     222,196,946  $ 194,218,230 

December 31,

2014

3 months or less  $       25,004,329 
Over 3 months through 6 months           16,772,307 
Over 6 months through 1 year           21,190,402 
Over 1 year through 2 years                755,185 
Over 3 years                970,978 

 $       64,693,201 

Interest-bearing deposits consisted of the following:

Time deposits that meet or exceed the FDIC Insurance limit of $250,000 at year end 2014 and 2013 were $16,815,802 
and $18,284,799, respectively.

The scheduled maturities for all time deposits for the next 5 years were as follows:

As of December 31, 2014 the Bank had brokered deposits totaling $5,100,130 and no brokered deposits at 
December 31, 2013. Interest expense on time deposits of $100,000 or more was $111,432 and $137,012 in 2014 
and 2013, respectively.

note 8. dePoSItS

Building and kiosk rent expense for the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, was approximately $590,000 
and $564,000, respectively. Lease commitments, before considering renewal options that generally are present, for 
future years are as follows:

Year ending December 31,
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note 9. borroWed fundS 

At December 31, 2014, the Bank had federal funds advances were available. These advances are secured 
borrowing guidance lines with its correspondent banks by assets including the Bank’s ownership interest in the 
in an aggregate amount of $11.0 million on an unsecured capital stock of the FHLB, securities and loans. 
basis. In addition, the Bank has established a secured 

The amounts pledged at FHLB at December 31, 2014borrowing arrangement, secured by its investment 
included investment securities totaling $28,077,203 andportfolio, with the Federal Home Loan Bank of San 
loans totaling approximately $76,420,909. The Bank hadFrancisco (“FHLB”). As of December 31, 2014, the 
no borrowed funds outstanding at December 31, 2014 Bank had $104,498,112 in borrowing capacity available 
and December 31, 2013 under these arrangements.through the FHLB under which overnight and term 

note 10. PenSIon And other PoStretIrement benefIt PlAnS 

Effective October 1, 2004, the Bank established the The Bank uses December 31 as the measurement date 
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP), an for this Plan. The following table reflects the accumulated 
unfunded noncontributory defined benefit pension benefit obligation and funded status of the SERP for the 
plan. The SERP provides retirement benefits to a years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013. 
select group of key executives and senior officers 
based on years of service and final average salary. 

2014 2013 
Change in benefit obligation 

Beginning benefit obligation $ 2,402,470 $ 2,495,629 
Service cost 109,659 135,679 
Interest cost 112,076 99,189 
Actuarial gain (238,188) (288,659) 
Benefits paid (40,352) (39,368) 
Ending benefit obligation 2,345,665 2,402,470 

Funded status at end of year (2,345,665) (2,402,470) 
Unrecognized net actuarial (gain)/loss (75,942) 162,246 
Unrecognized prior service cost 12,970 21,450 
Net liability recognized in earnings (2,408,637) (2,218,774) 

Accrued benefit liability (2,345,665) (2,402,470) 
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income (62,972) 183,696 
Net amount recognized $ (2,408,637) $ (2,218,774) 

The components of net periodic benefit cost for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 and forecasted net 
periodic benefit cost during the year ended December 31, 2015 are as follows: 

Year ended December 31, 
2015 2014 2013 

Components of net periodic benefit cost (forecast) 
Service cost $ 110,243 $ 109,659 $ 135,679 
Interest cost 84,862 112,076 99,189 
Amortization of prior service cost 8,480 8,480 8,480 
Recognized plan loss - - 60,533 
Net periodic benefit cost $ 203,585 $ 230,215 $ 303,881 
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NOTE 11. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

401(k) Plan: All employees of the Bank are eligible to participate in the Bank’s 401(k) Plan, which is a tax-
deferred savings plan designed to assist employees in preparing for their retirement years. The plan allows 
employees to contribute to the Plan up to certain limits prescribed by the Internal Revenue Service. The 
Bank implemented a matching program during 2013 and matches up to 25% of contributions up to 1% of 
compensation in 2013 and up to 2% of compensation in 2014. Total expense for the year ending December 
31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 was $69,694 and $29,898, respectively. 

The Bank accounts for split-dollar life insurance in accordance with ASC 715-60, Compensation 
Nonretirement Postemployment Benefits, which requires that endorsement split-dollar life insurance 
arrangements which provide a postretirement benefit to an employee be recorded based on the substance 
of the agreement with the employee. If the employer has effectively agreed to provide the employee with a 
death benefit, the employer should accrue, over the service period, a liability for the actuarial present value 
of the future death benefit as of the employee's expected retirement date. Total expense (benefit) 
recognized during the year ending December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 was $60,000 and ($44,403), 
respectively. 

NOTE 12. INCOME TAXES 

The provision for income taxes is as follows for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013: 

 

    
    

   
       

  
 

  
  

 
  

      
  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

assumptions: Weighted average assumptions to determine benefit obligation as of December 31: 

2014 2013 
Discount rate used to determine net periodic benefit cost 4.50% 3.80% 
Discount rate used to determine net periodic benefit obligations 3.65% 4.50% 
Future salary increases N/A N/A 

note 11. emPloyee benefIt PlAnS 

401(k) plaN: All employees of the Bank are eligible to participate in the Bank’s 401(k) Plan, which is a tax-deferred 
savings plan designed to assist employees in preparing for their retirement years. The plan allows employees to 
contribute to the Plan up to certain limits prescribed by the Internal Revenue Service. The Bank implemented a 
matching program during 2013 and matches up to 25% of contributions up to 1% of compensation in 2013 and up 
to 2% of compensation in 2014. Total expense for the year ending December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 
was $69,694 and $29,898, respectively. 

-The Bank accounts for split-dollar life insurance in accordance with ASC 715-60, Compensation - Nonretirement 
Postemployment Benefits, which requires that endorsement split-dollar life insurance arrangements which provide a 
postretirement benefit to an employee be recorded based on the substance of the agreement with the employee. If 
the employer has effectively agreed to provide the employee with a death benefit, the employer should accrue, over 
the service period, a liability for the actuarial present value of the future death benefit as of the employee’s expected 
retirement date. Total expense (benefit) recognized during the year ending December 31, 2014 and December 31, 
2013 was $60,000 and ($44,403), respectively. 

note 12. InCome tAXeS 

The provision for income taxes is as follows for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013: 

2014 2013 
Current expense: 

Federal 2,282,829 $ 1,567,297 $
   State 833,671 484,767
       Total current 3,116,500 2,052,064 
Deferred expense: 

Federal (280,221) $ (233,900) $
   State (52,792) (81,652)
       Total deferred (333,013) (315,552) 
Total provision 2,783,487 $ 1,736,512 $ 

The effective tax rates differ from the federal statutory rate of 34% applied to income before income taxes due to The effective tax rates differ from the federal statutory rate of 34% applied to income before income taxes 
due to the following for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013: the following for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013: 

31, 
2014 2013 

Federal statutory rate 34.00% 34.00% 
State income tax, net of federal effect 7.20% 5.27% 
Tax exempt interest (2.97%) (3.48%) 
Bank owned life insurance (0.84%) (1.17%) 
Split dollar expense 0.29% (0.30%) 
FAS 123 R expense 0.51% 0.00% 
Other 0.72% 0.08% 
Net 38.90% 34.40%
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Management believes that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized as a result of 
expected continued profitability. Accordingly, no valuation allowance has been established as of December 
31, 2014 or December 31, 2013. 

The Bank files income tax returns in the United States and California jurisdictions. Unrecognized tax benefits 
are not expected to significantly increase or decrease within the next twelve months. The Bank’s federal and 
state tax returns for the years 2011 to 2014 and 2010 to 2014, respectively, are currently open for 
examination. 

NOTE 13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank makes loans to directors, officers, shareholders and their 
associates. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, no related party loans were on nonaccrual or classified for 
regulatory reporting purposes. 

Loan related activity to directors, officers, and principal shareholders and their associates for the years 
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 is as follows: 

       
  

 

     
 

  

 

  
   

 

  

 

Deferred income taxes are the result of differences between income tax accounting and accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America, with respect to income and expense recognition. The tax effects 
of temporary differences that gave rise to deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2014 and 
2013 are as follows: 

2014 2013 

Allowance for loan losses 2,287,050 $ 1,978,392 $ 
Unrealized loss on available for sale 
securities and pension 18,017 118,061 
Deferred compensation 991,260 913,123 
Accruals 944,265 593,074 
Current state income tax 286,008 211,136 
Fixed assets 36,520 -
Other deferred tax assets 65,720 232,498
   Gross deferred tax assets 4,628,840 4,046,284 

Deferred loan costs (1,079,408) (726,850) 
Fixed assets - (21,197) 
Other deferred tax liabilities (80,206) (61,980)
   Gross deferred tax liabilities (1,159,614) (810,027)

   Net deferred tax asset 3,469,226 $ 3,236,257 $ 

Management believes that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized as a result of 
expected continued profitability. Accordingly, no valuation allowance has been established as of December 31, 
2014 or December 31, 2013. 

The Bank files income tax returns in the United States and California jurisdictions. Unrecognized tax benefits are 
not expected to significantly increase or decrease within the next twelve months. The Bank’s federal and state tax 
returns for the years 2011 to 2014 and 2010 to 2014, respectively, are currently open for examination. 

note 13. relAted PArty trAnSACtIonS 

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank makes loans to directors, officers, shareholders and their 
associates. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, no related party loans were on nonaccrual or classified for 
regulatory reporting purposes. 

Loan related activity to directors, officers, and principal shareholders and their associates for the years ended 
December 31, 2014 and 2013 is as follows: 

2014 2013 

Beginning balance 
New loans or disbursements 
Principal repayments 
Ending balance 

$ 891,362 $ 925,380 
502,862 65,866 

(151,489) (99,884) 
$ 1,242,736 $ 891,362 

Deposits from principal officers, directors, and their affiliates at year end 2014 and 2013 were $1,362,924 and 
$2,065,103, respectively. 
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note 14. StoCk-bASed ComPenSAtIon 

The Bank has three share based compensation plans 
as described below. Total compensation cost that 
has been charged against income for those plans was 
$154,792 and $91,546 for 2014 and 2013, respectively. 
The total income tax benefit recorded to additional paid 
in capital was $166,012 and $13,505 for 2014 and 
2013, respectively. 

StOCk OptiON plaN: The Bank adopted a qualified 
stock option plan (the “Option Plan”) for employees, 
non-employee directors and Bank founders, under 
which a maximum of 500,202 shares of Bank’s 
common stock may be issued. The Option Plan calls 
for the exercise prices of the options to be equal to or 
greater than the fair market value of the stock at the 
time of grant. Options granted to Bank founders who 
are not also Bank directors or Bank officers were fully 
vested upon the date of grant. All other options shares 
granted have daily vesting over the first four years of 
the option contract. All option contracts for founders 
who are not also Bank directors or Bank officers have 
expiration dates of 10 years from the date of grant. All 
director and employee option contracts have expiration 
dates on the earlier of termination of service or 10 
years from the date of grant. The Option Plan expired 
during 2014 and was replaced with the Omnibus Plan 
(the “Omnibus Plan”). 

All options granted under the Option Plan have a 10 
year term and have been issued with exercise prices 
at the fair market value of the underlying shares at 
the date of grant. The non-qualified stock option 
awards to the organizers vested 100% immediately, 
whereas regular stock option awards to directors and 
employees vest over a four year period from the date 
the options were granted. 

The Bank estimates the fair value of each option award 
as of the date of grant using a Black-Scholes-Merton 
option pricing formula and the following assumptions. 
Expected volatility is based on historical volatility of 
similar entities over a preceding period commensurate 
with the expected term of the option because the 
Bank’s common stock has been publicly traded for a 
shorter period than the expected term for the options. 
The “simplified” method described in the Securities 
and Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin 
No. 110 is used to determine the expected term of the 
options due to the lack of sufficient historical data. The 
risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield 
curve in effect at the time of grant with substantially the 
same term as the expected term of the option. There 
were no options granted during the year ended 2014. 

The following weighted average assumptions as of grant 
date used for 2013 are as follows: 

2013 

Expected life (yrs.) 
Volatility 
Risk-free rate of return 
Dividend yield 

6.00 
49.76% - 50.79% 
0.82% - 1.52% 

0.00% 
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Information related to the stock option plan during the year follows: 

    
    
  

  
       

   
      

     
  

 

  

 

  

The following is a summary of the activity relating to the Bank’s stock option plan for the year ended December 
31, 2014 as presented below: December 31, 2014 

Weighted 
Average 

Weighted Remaining Aggregate 
Average Contractual Intrinsic 

Shares Exercise Price Life Value
 
Options outstanding at beginning of year 233,520 $12.00
 
Granted - -
Exercised (142,163) $10.14
 
Forfeited or expired - -
Options outstanding at end of year 91,357 $14.89 5.97 years $602,999
 

Options fully vested and expected to vest 84,398 $558,204
 
Exercisable at end of year 61,685 $14.43 5.12 years $437,561
 

Information related to the stock option plan during the year follows: 
2014 

Intrinsic value of options exercised $ 1,114,150 
Cash received from option exercises 1,442,122 
Tax benefit realized from option exercises 167,731 
Weighted average fair value of options granted -

As of December 31, 2014, there was $185,804 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to As of December 31, 2014, there was $185,804 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested 
nonvested stock options granted under the plan. The cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted stock options granted under the plan. The cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period
average period of 2.27 years. of 2.27 years. 

Restricted Stock Award Plan: The Bank adopted a non-qualified restricted stock award plan (the “Award 
reStriCteD StOCk awarD plaN: The Bank adopted a non-qualified restricted stock award plan (thePlan”) for executive officers and non-employee directors under which the lesser of (i) 218,390 shares or (ii) 
“Award Plan”) for executive officers and non-employee directors under which the lesser of (i) 218,390 shares orthe difference between 500,202 and the sum of the number of shares underlying stock options outstanding 

or granted after April 11, 2011 and the number of shares of Restricted Stock Awards granted that may be (ii) the difference between 500,202 and the sum of the number of shares underlying stock options outstanding or 
issued. Restricted Stock Awards vest at 25% per year on the anniversary date of the award over the first granted after April 11, 2011 and the number of shares of Restricted Stock Awards granted that may be issued. 
four years of the contract, except in the event of a qualifying Terminating Event. Restricted Stock Awards vest at 25% per year on the anniversary date of the award over the first four years of the 

contract, except in the event of a qualifying Terminating Event.
The following is a summary of the activity relating to the Bank’s restricted stock award plan as of December
 
31, 2014 as presented below:
 The following is a summary of the activity relating to the Bank’s restricted stock award plan as of December 31, 

2014 as presented below: December 31, 2014 
Weighted 

Average Grant 
Nonvested Shares Shares Date Fair Value 

Nonvested at January 1, 2014 5,000 $11.14 
Granted - -
Vested (2,500) $11.14 
Forfeited - -
Nonvested at December 31, 2014 2,500 $11.14 

As of December 31, 2014, there was $9,362 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested shares 
granted under the plan. The cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 0.36 years. The 
total fair value of shares vested during the years ended December 31, 2014 was $27,862. 
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The following is a summary of the activity relating to the Bank’s stock option plan for the year ended 
December 31, 2014 as presented below: 

  

  

  2014 OmNibuS plaN: The Bank adopted a new 
stock option plan (the “Omnibus Plan”) for employees 
and non-employee directors, which will continue in 
effect until February 19, 2024. The maximum number of 
shares of common stock that may be issued under this 
plan is 427,246 unless amended by the Board or the 
shareholders of the Bank. 

The Santa Cruz County Bank Omnibus Plan permits 
the grant of stock options to directors and employees 
of the Bank. Options granted under the Plan may 
be Incentive Stock Options or Non-statutory Stock 
Options, as determined by the Administrator at the 
time of grant of an option, however Incentive Stock 
Options may be granted only to employees. In addition, 
Restricted Stock Awards may be granted under the 
Plan to Directors and Employees. 

The per share exercise price for the Shares to be issued 
upon exercise of any option shall be such price as is 
determined by the Administrator, but no less than 100 

percent of the Fair Market Value per share on the date 
of grant. All option contracts have expiration dates on 
the earlier of termination of service or 10 years from the 
date of grant. 

The Bank estimates the fair value of each option award 
as of the date of grant using a Black-Scholes-Merton 
option pricing model and the following assumptions. 
Expected volatility is based on historical volatility of 
similar entities over a preceding period commensurate 
with the expected term of the option because the Bank’s 
common stock is not actively traded. The “simplified” 
method described in the Securities and Exchange 
Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 110 is used 
to determine the expected term of the options due to 
the lack of sufficient historical data. The risk-free interest 
rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at 
the time of grant with substantially the same term as the 
expected term of the option. 

The following weighted average assumptions as of grant date used for 2014 are as follows: 
2014 

Expected life (yrs.) 6.00 
Volatility 49.85% - 51.53% 
Risk-free rate of return 1.59% - 1.77% 
Dividend yield 0.05% 

The following is a summary of the activity relating to the Bank’s stock option plan for the year ended December 31, 
2014 as presented below: 

December 31, 2014 
Weighted 
Average 

Weighted Remaining Aggregate 
Average Contractual Intrinsic 

Shares Exercise Price Life Value 
Options outstanding at beginning of year 
Granted 
Exercised 
Forfeited or expired 
Options outstanding at end of year 

-
22,000 

-
-

22,000 

-
$19.92 

-
-

$19.92 9.56 years $32,990 

Options fully vested and expected to vest 
Exercisable at end of year 

19,738 
2,675 $19.67 9.49 years 

$29,513 
$4,679 

As of December 31, 2014, there was $161,432 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested 
stock options granted under the plan. The cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period 
of 3.48 years. 
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note 15. reGulAtory CAPItAl mAtterS 

regulatOrY Capital: The Bank is subject to 
various regulatory capital adequacy requirements 
administered by the banking regulatory agencies. The 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement 
Act of 1991 (FDICIA) required that the federal 
regulatory agencies adopt regulations defining five 
capital tiers for depository institutions: well-capitalized, 
adequately capitalized, undercapitalized, significantly 
undercapitalized, and critically undercapitalized. Failure 
to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate 
certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary 
actions by regulators that, if undertaken, would have a 
direct material effect on the Bank’s financial statements. 

Quantitative measures, established by the regulators 
to ensure capital adequacy, require that the Bank 
maintain minimum ratios (set forth in the following 

table) of capital to risk weighted assets and average 
assets. Management believes that, as of December 
31, 2014 and 2013, the Bank met all capital adequacy 
requirements to which it was subject. 

The most recent notification from the FDIC categorized 
the Bank as well-capitalized under the FDICIA 
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To 
be categorized as well-capitalized, the institution must 
maintain a total risk-based capital ratio as set forth in the 
following table. At year end 2014 and 2013, the most 
recent regulatory notifications categorized the Bank 
as well-capitalized under the regulatory framework for 
prompt corrective action. There are no conditions or 
events since that notification that management believes 
have changed the institution’s category. 

Actual and required capital amounts and ratios are presented below at year end. 

(Dollars in thousands) 

As of December 31, 2014

   Total capital (to risk weighted assets) 

   Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) 

   Tier 1 capital (to average assets) leverage ratio 

As of December 31, 2013

   Total capital (to risk weighted assets) 

   Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) 

   Tier 1 capital (to average assets) leverage ratio 

Actual 

Amount Ratio 

For Capital 
Adequacy Purposes: 

Amount Ratio 

Capitalized Under 
the FDICIA Prompt 
Corrective Action 

Provisions 

Amount Ratio 

$ 43,148 

$ 38,996 

$ 38,996 

13.08% 

11.82% 

8.39% 

$ 26,383 

$ 13,192 

$ 18,583 

8.00% 

4.00% 

4.00% 

$ 32,979 

$ 19,787 

$ 23,229 

10.00%

6.00%

5.00% 

$ 36,860 

$ 33,286 

$ 33,286 

13.00% 

11.74% 

8.21% 

$ 22,690 

$ 11,345 

$ 16,225 

8.00% 

4.00% 

4.00% 

$ 28,363 

$ 17,018 

$ 20,282 

10.00%

6.00%

5.00% 

DiviDeND reStriCtiONS: The Board of Directors may, to the extent of such earnings and the Bank’s net capital 
requirements and subject to the provisions of the California Financial Code, declare and pay a portion of such 
earnings to its shareholders as dividends. No cash dividend will be declared without a complete analysis of capital 
impact, current economic assessment, and current risk analysis. 
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note 16. loAn CommItmentS And other dISCloSureS 

reStriCtiONS ON CaSh aND Due frOm baNkS: 
Santa Cruz County Bank is subject to Federal Reserve 
Act Regulation D, which requires banks to maintain 
average reserve balances with the Federal Reserve 
Bank. Reserve requirements are offset by usable cash 
reserves. The Bank had no reserve requirement at 
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013. 

At times, the Bank maintains deposit amounts at 
corresponding banks that exceed federally insured 
limits. The Bank has not experienced any losses on 
amounts exceeding the insured limits. 

lOaN COmmitmeNtS: The Bank is a party to 
financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the 
normal course of business to meet the financing needs 
of its customers. These financial instruments include 
commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit, 
overdraft protection and financial guarantees. Those 
instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of 
credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount 
recognized in the balance sheets. The contract amounts 
of those instruments reflect the extent of involvement the 
Bank has in particular classes of financial instruments. 

The Bank’s exposure to credit loss in the event of 
nonperformance by the other party for commitments 
to extend credit, standby letters of credit, and financial 
guarantees is represented by the contractual amount 
of those instruments. The Bank uses the same credit 
policies in making commitments and conditional 
obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments. 

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend 
to a customer as long as there is no violation of any 
condition established in the contract. Commitments 
generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination 
clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many 
of the commitments are expected to expire without 
being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do 
not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The 
Bank evaluates each customer’s credit worthiness on a 
case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, 
if deemed necessary by the Bank upon extension of 
credit, is based on management’s credit evaluation. 
Collateral held varies but may include cash, securities, 
accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and 
equipment, residential real estate and income-producing 
commercial properties. 

Standby letters of credit and financial guarantees written are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to 
guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is 
essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. Financial instruments whose contract 
amounts represent credit risk at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 are as follows: 

December 31, 
2014 2013 

Commitments to extend credit
Standby letters of credit

 $ 

$ 

89,081,921 
        1,618,262 

90,700,183 

$ 

$ 

86,666,270 
           684,464 

87,350,734 
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note 17. eArnInGS Per ShAre 

earNiNgS per Share: A reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted earnings per 
share computation is a follows: 

December 31, 2014 
Net Income 

Weighted 
Average Number Per Share 

of Shares Amount 

Basic earnings per share $ 4,371,187 2,128,437 $ 2.05 

Effect of dilutive stock based
  compensation - 31,547 

Diluted earnings per share $ 4,371,187 2,159,984 $ 2.02 

December 31, 2013 

Basic earnings per share $ 3,311,997 1,968,666 $ 1.68 

Effect of dilutive stock based
  compensation - 77,595 

Diluted earnings per share 3,311,997 $ 2,046,261 1.62 $ 

Stock options for 39,000 shares and 68,000 shares of common stock were not considered in computing diluted 
earnings per common share for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, because they 
were anti-dilutive. 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

boArd of dIreCtorS
 

george r. gallucci harvey J. Nickelson 
(Chairman) Retired Bank CEO & 

Retired Banker & Registered Community Volunteer
Investment Advisor 

william J. hansen tila guerrero 
(Vice-Chairman) President & President & CEO Mas Mac Inc. 

CEO Hansen Insurance Co. & McDonald’s Restaurants 

thomas N. griffin kenneth r. Chappell 
Director & President CPA, Partner-in-Charge 

Grunsky, Ebey, Hutchinson & Bloodgood, LLP 
Farrar & Howell 

David v. heald 
President & CEO 

Santa Cruz County Bank 
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bAnk founderS 
A group of local business people joined to create a local, community bank focused on serving the 

residents and businesses of Santa Cruz County when it became apparent that the last of the local 

independent banks was soon to be taken over by a large out-of-area bank holding company. This 

group that we recognize as Founders all contributed time, money, and talent, not only to the Bank’s 

organizing effort, but continue to be involved and support our Bank as customers, referring family, 

friends and business contacts to us, and serving as ambassadors of the Bank in our community. 

The Bank’s Founders are listed below: 

Richard Alderson Kate & Fred Chen David V. Heald* Stuart Mumm 
Joseph Anzalone Marshall Delk Mark Holcomb George Ow, Jr. 
Victor Bogard George R. Gallucci* Steven G. John** Louis Rittenhouse 
Anthony & Rebecca Campos Thomas N. Griffin* Mateo Lettunich Frank Saveria 
Charles Canfield Tila Guerrero* Robert Lockwood Robert & Bjorg Yonts 
Kenneth R. Chappell* William J. Hansen* William Moncovich 

*denotes Bank Director **denotes former Bank Director 

SAntA Cruz County bAnk mAnAGement teAm 
David V. Heald, President & Chief Executive Officer 

Frederick L. Caiocca, Executive Vice President, Regional Credit Manager 

Vic Davis, Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer 

Heather LaFontaine, Senior Vice President, Chief Administrative Officer 

Mary Anne Carson, Senior Vice President, Director of Marketing & Community Relations 

Susan Chandler, Senior Vice President, SBA Department Manager 

Angelo DeBernardo, Jr., Senior Vice President, Senior Lending Officer 

Jaime Manriquez, Senior Vice President, Chief Technology Officer & Information Security Officer 

Tracy Ruelas-Hashimoto, Senior Vice President, Controller 

Jon Sisk, Senior Vice President, Director Real Estate & Construction Lending 

Janice Zappa, Senior Vice President, Corporate Secretary 

In memorIAm 


We dedicate this annual report in memory of Chief Credit Officer, Geoffrey 

Loftus who joined our bank in April 2013 and passed in January 

2015. Geoff and his contributions to Santa Cruz County Bank 

will be forever remembered with fondness and appreciation. 
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bAnkInG loCAtIonS 

APtoS 7775 Soquel Dr. 831.662.6000 

CAPItolA 819 Bay Ave. 831.464.5300 

SAntA Cruz 720 Front St. 831.457.5000 

SCottS vAlley 4604 Scotts Valley Dr. 831.461.5000 

WAtSonvIlle 595 Auto Center Dr. 831.761.7600 

AddItIonAl Atm & nIGht dePoSItory loCAtIonS 

domInICAn hoSPItAl 1555 Soquel Dr., Santa Cruz 

deluXe foodS 783-25 Rio Del Mar Blvd., Aptos 




